
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, September 28, 2016 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATIONS 

• Recreation Volunteer Recognition

• Proclamation in honor of the 75th Anniversary of the Cow Palace

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 14, 2016 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 5.12 Related to
Inclusionary and Affordable Housing Pursuant To CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) (Second Reading).

PUBLIC HEARING 

3. APPOINTING CITY MANAGER AS CITY TREASURER

a. Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Section
1.03.105, Regarding the City Treasurer’s Duties, and Waive a Further Reading of the
Ordinance.

b. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Appointing Sean Rabé as City Treasurer.

Page 1 of 2 



NEW BUSINESS 

4. GRANT FUNDING REQUEST FOR DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Grant to Daly City Public Library Associates,
Finding That the Grant Serves a Public Purpose, and Authorizing a Contract With Daly City Public
Library Associates for the Use of Town Funds.

5. FY 2016-17 NON-PROFIT FUNDING

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant Funding, Approving
Grants to Eligible Organizations, Finding that Each Approved Grant Serves a Public Purpose, and
Authorizing Contracts with Each Eligible Organization for the Use of Town Funds.

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council 

City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

Page 2 of 2 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, September 14, 2016 

7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Diana Colvin called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:03 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
“Rae” Gonzalez, Joseph Silva and Joanne F. del Rosario were all present. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police Kirk 
Stratton, Recreation Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, 
City Planner Michael Laughlin, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested.  The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez  
Joseph Silva  
Joanne F. del Rosario  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 

• Mayor Colvin read excerpts from a proclamation in honor of the 25th Anniversary of CSG
Consultants, Inc.

• Police Chief Kirk Stratton introduced new dispatcher Maria Scafani-Gomez.
• City Manager Sean Rabé presented commendations to Mary Brodzin, John Goodwin and

Ken Varner for their participation in the Waste Hauler Selection Community Committee.
• Council presented the Town’s Honor Roll Students with gifts and a certificate in honor

of their academic achievements.

There was a brief break for coffee and cake from 7:20 p.m. to 7:40 p.m. 

Page 1 of 5 

Item #1



PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:40 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 27, 2016 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for July 2016.

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for August 2016.

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adopting an Amended Appendix of the Conflict of Interest
Code Pursuant to the Political Reform Act of 1974.

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase of
One TYMCO Model 435 Street Sweeper.

6. Motion to Receive and File the Fourth Quarter (April 2016 – June 2016) Financial Report and
Direct Staff to Post a Copy on the Town Website.

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1-6; the
motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote:

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez  
Joseph Silva  
Joanne F. del Rosario  

5 0 

PUBLIC HEARING 

7. HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN ADOPTION

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public
hearing at 7:49 p.m. Residents Pat Hatfield and William Deguia made comments. The Mayor
closed the public hearing at 7:49 p.m. Council discussion followed.

Action: Council Member Silva moved to adopt a Resolution Adopting All of Volume 1 and
Colma’s Portion of Volume 2 of the San Mateo County Hazard Mitigation Plan Pursuant to
CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3); the motion was seconded be Council Member Gonzalez and
carried by the following vote:

Page 2 of 5 



 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

8. HOUSING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS AND HOUSING IMPACT FEES 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public 
hearing at 8:22 p.m. HEART Executive Director Armando Sanchez and Residents Pat 
Simpson and Tom Taylor made comments. The Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:28 
p.m. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to introduce an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal 
Code Subchapter 5.12 Related to Inclusionary and Affordable Housing Pursuant To CEQA 
Guideline 15061(b)(3), and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance; the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to adopt a Resolution Amending Colma Administrative 
Code, Subchapter 1.10, Master Fee Schedule, Establishing Affordable Housing Impact Fees 
for Residential and Nonresidential Development Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15378(b)(4); 
the motion was seconded by Council Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

9. 999 SERRAMONTE BOULEVARD – FORD EXTERIOR REMODEL AND ADDITION  

Associate Planner Turhan Sonmez presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the 
public hearing at 8:37 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion followed.  

Page 3 of 5 
 



 

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt a Resolution Approving an Amended 
Conditional Use Permit and Project Design for an Automobile Dealership Addition and 
Exterior Remodel at 999 Serramonte Boulevard, Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301(e); the 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

10. DEL CARMEN GONZALEZ RECYCLER’S PERMIT 

Associate Planner Turhan Sonmez presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the 
public comment period at 8:47 p.m. Citizen Pat Simpson and resident Mary Brodzin made 
comments. The Mayor closed the public comment period at 8:55 p.m. Council discussion 
followed. Council asked that the resolution stipulate that the collected cardboard may not be 
stored in the city limits of the Town. 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to adopt a Resolution Approving a Recycler’s 
Permit for the Collection of Cardboard from Commercial Businesses Pursuant to CEQA 
Guideline 15061(b)(3), with the requested change; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
 5 0    

11. GRANT FUNDING REQUEST FOR DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES 

12. FY 2016-17 NON-PROFIT FUNDING 

City Manager Sean Rabé asked that items 11 and 12 be continued to the September 28, 
2016 Regular Council Meeting, in order to give Council sufficient time to consider all the 
grant applications.  

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meetings will be Wednesday, September 28, 2016 at 7:00 
p.m. and Wednesday, October 12, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 of 5 
 



 

REPORTS 

Diana Colvin 
 Business to Consumers Showcase, 9/10 
 Town Picnic, 9/10 
 

Helen Fisicaro 
 Business to Consumers Showcase, 9/10 
 Town Picnic, 9/10 
 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez  
 Adolescent Mental Wellness Conference, 8/5-6 
 Education Summit 2016, 8/25 
 Town Picnic, 9/10 
 

Joseph Silva  
 Council of Cities dinner, hosted by Belmont, 7/29 
 Town Picnic, 9/10 
 

Joanne F. del Rosario 
 Town Picnic, 9/10 

City Manager Sean Rabé gave a report on the following topics: 

 The Colma Police Department will be participating in Walk Like MADD, a fundraising 
event for Mothers Against Drunk Driving.  

 The Town received six Beacon Awards recognizing achievements in sustainability. 

 The Historical Association Fundraising Dinner will be on Friday, September 16 at 
5:00 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor Colvin at 9:12 p.m. and closed in memory of Mary 
Griffin Ramsuer, former San Mateo County Supervisor, Mayor of Millbrae; Marie Pariani, 
mother of Mike Pariani, contractor who completed Hillside Blvd; and Phillip Sigmund, 
brother of Vice Mayor Fisicaro. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 

Page 5 of 5 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 5.12 
RELATED TO INCLUSIONARY AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING  

PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15061(B)(3) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 SUBCHAPTER 5.12 AMENDED. 

Subchapter 5.12, entitled “Inclusionary and Affordable Housing” shall be and hereby is 
amended to read as follows: 

Subchapter 5.12 Inclusionary and Affordable Housing 

5.12.010 Purpose 

The purposes of this Subchapter are to: 

(1) Encourage the development and availability of housing affordable to a broad 
range of Households with varying income levels as mandated by State Law, 
California Government Code Sections 65580.  

(2) Promote the City’s goal to add affordable housing units to the housing stock 

(3) Provide housing to all income categories through the encouragement of higher 
densities near major regional transportation facilities; 

(4) Offset the demand on housing that is created by new development and mitigate 
environmental and other impacts that accompany new residential and 
Commercial Development by protecting the economic diversity of the City’s 
housing stock, reducing traffic, transit and related air quality impacts, promoting 
jobs/housing balance and reducing the demands placed on transportation 
infrastructure in the region; 

(5) Provide housing accessible to persons with special needs and the elderly; and 

(6) Assist citizens in locating and retaining affordable housing and promote equal 
housing opportunity and Fair Housing. 

[History: ORD. 639, 1/11/06] 

Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 1 of 21 

Item #2



5.12.020 Findings 

(a) Both California and the City face a serious housing problem that threatens their 
economic security. Lack of access to affordable housing has a direct impact upon the 
health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City. The City will not be able to 
contribute to the attainment of State housing goals or to retain a healthy environment 
without additional affordable housing. The housing problem has an impact upon a broad 
range of income groups including many who are not impoverished by standards other 
than those applicable to California’s and the City’s housing markets, and no single 
housing program will be sufficient to meet the housing need. 

(b) There is a “affordability gap” between the median price of housing in San Mateo County 
and the price of housing that a lower income household can afford to purchase or rent 
as documented in the 2016 Colma Residential Impact Fee Nexus Study.  This 
affordability gap can be bridged, in part, by adoption of this ordinance. 

(c) A lack of new Inclusionary Units will have a substantial negative impact on the 
environment and economic climate because (i) housing will have to be built elsewhere, 
far from employment centers and therefore commutes will increase, causing increased 
traffic and transit demand and consequent noise and air pollution; and (ii) City 
businesses will find it more difficult to attract and retain the workers they need. 
Inclusionary housing policies contribute to a healthy job and housing balance by 
providing more affordable housing close to employment centers.  

(d) Development of market-rate housing encourages new residents to move to the City. 
These new residents will place demands on services provided by both the public and 
private sectors. Some of the public and private sector employees needed to meet the 
needs of the new residents earn incomes only adequate to pay for affordable housing. 
Because affordable housing is in short supply within the City, these employees may be 
forced to live in less than adequate housing within the City, pay a disproportionate share 
of their incomes to live in adequate housing within the City, or commute ever-increasing 
distances to their jobs from housing located outside the City. These circumstances harm 
the City’s ability to attain goals articulated in the City’s General Plan and strain the City’s 
ability to accept and service new market-rate housing development. 

(e) The California Legislature has required each local government agency to develop a 
comprehensive, long-term general plan establishing policies for future development. As 
specified in the Government Code (at Sections 65300, 65302(c), and 65583(c)), the plan 
must: (i) “encourage the development of a variety of types of housing for all income 
levels, including multifamily rental housing;” (ii) “[a]ssist in the development of 
adequate housing to meet the needs of low- and moderate-income households;” and 
(iii) “conserve and improve the condition of the existing affordable housing stock, which 
may include addressing ways to mitigate the loss of dwelling units demolished by public 
or private action.”  

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 2 of 21 



(f) This ordinance is consistent with the Town's General Plan. Section 5.01.205 of the 
Colma General Plan provides that it is the policy of the Town to maintain the availability 
of affordable housing units, both rental and for sale, for all income groups. This 
ordinance will create affordable housing for lower income groups with provisions to 
maintain those units as affordable for 45 years or longer. 

(g) The citizens of the Town seek a well-planned, aesthetically pleasing and balanced 
community, with housing affordable to Very Low-, Low- and Moderate-Income 
Households. Affordable housing should be available throughout the Town, and not 
restricted to a few neighborhoods and areas. However, there may also be trade-offs 
where constructing affordable units at a different site than the site of the principal 
project may produce a greater number of affordable units without additional costs to the 
project applicant. Thus, the Town finds that in certain limited circumstances, the 
purposes of this Subchapter may be better served by allowing the Developer to comply 
with the inclusionary requirement through alternative means, such as the payment of in-
lieu fees, development of offsite housing or dedication of land. For example, if a project 
applicant can produce a significantly greater number of affordable units off-site, then it 
may (but not always) be in the best interest of the Town to permit the development of 
affordable units at a different location than that of the principal project.  

(h) Federal and state funds for the construction of new affordable housing are insufficient to 
fully address the problem of affordable housing within the Town. Nor has the private 
housing market provided adequate housing opportunities affordable to Moderate-, Low- 
and Very Low-Income Households.  

(i) The Town is aware that there may be times when the inclusionary housing requirements 
make market-rate housing more expensive. In weighing all the factors, including the 
significant need for affordable housing, the Town has made the decision that the 
community’s interests are best served by the adoption of the inclusionary housing 
ordinance.  

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.030 Definitions 

For the purposes of this Subchapter, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth 
herein.  Words not defined shall be given their common and ordinary meaning. 

(1) “Affordable rent” means: (1) monthly rent that does not exceed thirty percent 
(30%) of the qualifying limits for lower income households applicable to San 
Mateo County, adjusted for family size and other factors by the California State 
Department of Housing and Community Development, as published annually in 
Title 25 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 6932 (or its successor 
provision) and (2) monthly rent that does not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the 
qualifying limits for very-low income households applicable to San Mateo County, 
adjusted for family size and other factors by the California State Department of 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 3 of 21 



Housing and Community Development, as published annually in Title 25 of the 
California Code of Regulations, Section 6932 (or its successor provision). 
Affordable rent shall be based on presumed occupancy levels of one person in a 
studio unit, two persons in a one-bedroom unit, three persons in a two-bedroom 
unit, and one additional person for each additional bedroom thereafter. 

(2) “Affordable sales price” means the maximum purchase price that will be 
affordable to the specified target income household. A maximum purchase price 
shall be considered affordable only if the owner-occupied monthly housing 
payment is equal to or less than one-twelfth of 30% of income for the specified 
target income household. Affordable sales price shall be based upon presumed 
occupancy levels of one person in a studio unit, two persons in a one-bedroom 
unit, three persons in a two bedroom unit, and one additional person for each 
additional bedroom thereafter. 

(3) “Annual household income” means the combined gross income for all adult 
persons living in a dwelling unit as calculated for the purpose of the Section 8 
program under the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, or its 
successor.  

(4) “Building permit” means a permit issued pursuant to Subchapter Four of Chapter 
Five of the Colma Municipal Code. 

(5) “Building Official” means the chief building official of the Town of Colma, or the 
designee of such individual. 

(6) "Concession" or "incentive" shall have the same meaning and applicability as set 
forth in Government Code Section 65915.  

(7) “Construction cost index" means the San Francisco Building Cost Index published 
by Engineering News-Record. 

(8) "Developer" means every person, firm, or corporation constructing, placing, or 
creating residential development directly or through the services of any 
employee, agent, independent contractor or otherwise. 

(9) “Dwelling unit" shall have the meaning set forth in section 5.01.080 of the Town 
of Colma Municipal Code. 

(10) “Housing Fund” means the Town of Colma Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
established pursuant to Section 5.12.170. 

(11) “Housing In-lieu Fee” means the fee established pursuant to Sections 5.12.040 
and 5.12.090 for for-sale Residential development projects. 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 4 of 21 



(12) “Housing Impact Fee” means the fee established pursuant to Section 5.12.050, 
5.12.060 and 5.12.090 for for-rent Residential development projects and Non-
Residential/Commercial Development. 

(13) “Inclusionary Housing Plan” means a plan for a residential or commercial 
development submitted by a developer as provided by Section 5.12.130(d). 

(14) “Inclusionary Housing Agreement” means a written agreement between 
developer and the Town as provided by Section 5.12.130(e). 

(15) “Inclusionary Unit” means a dwelling unit that must be offered at an affordable 
housing sales price to Moderate-, Low- and Very Low-Income Households. 

(16) “Low-income household” means a household with an income of up to the 
qualifying limit for low-income households applicable to San Mateo County, 
adjusted for family size and other factors by the California State Department of 
Housing and Community Development, as published annually in Title 25 of the 
California Code of Regulations, Section 6932 (or its successor provision). 

(17) “Market rate unit” means a dwelling unit in a residential development that is not 
an Inclusionary Unit, or a unit restricted pursuant to the requirements of 
Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D). 

(18) “Median income” means the median income applicable to San Mateo County, 
adjusted for family size and other factors by the California State Department of 
Housing and Community Development, as published annually in Title 25 of the 
California Code of Regulations, Section 6932 (or its successor provision). 

(19) “Moderate income household” means a household with an incomes of up to 
120% of median income applicable to San Mateo County, adjusted for family size 
and other factors by the California State Department of Housing and Community 
Development, as published annually in Title 25 of the California Code of 
Regulations, Section 6932 (or its successor provision). 

(20) “Non-Residential/Commercial Development” means the new construction of any 
commercial use, including but not limited to, retail, restaurants, office, medical 
office, hotel, and research and development, or the conversion of a residential 
use to a nonresidential use. 

(21) “Non-Residential/Commercial Development Floor Area” shall be calculated using 
the gross floor area of net new nonresidential space, excluding structured 
parking. 

(22) Owner-occupied monthly housing payment” means the sum equal to the 
principal, interest, property taxes, homeowner’s insurance and homeowner’s 
association dues paid on an annual basis divided by 12. 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 5 of 21 



(23) “Residential development project” means the construction of any residential 
dwelling units where the tentative map, parcel map or, for project not processing 
a map, the building permit was received after February 11, 2006. 

(24) "Residential Floor Area" shall be calculated as follows: 

(A) For Single-Family Detached Homes, Townhomes, Duplexes, and Triplexes 
includes all horizontal areas of the several floors of such buildings measured 
from the exterior faces of exterior walls or from the center line of party walls 
separating two (2) buildings, minus the horizontal areas of such buildings used 
exclusively for parking.  

(B) For Apartments and Condominiums includes all horizontal areas of the 
several floors of such buildings measured from the exterior faces of exterior walls 
or from the center line of party walls separating two (2) buildings, minus the 
horizontal areas of such buildings used exclusively for covered porches, patios, or 
other outdoor space, amenities and common space, parking, elevators, stairwells 
or stairs between floors, hallways, and between unit circulation. 

(25) “Very low-income household” means a household with incomes of up to 50% of 
median income applicable to San Mateo County, adjusted for family size and 
other factors by the California State Department of Community Development, as 
published annually in Title 25 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 6932 
(or its successor provision). 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.040 For-Sale Residential Development 

(a) Inclusionary Units Requirement. For all for-sale Residential Developments of five or 
more units, at least twenty percent of the total units must be Inclusionary Units restricted for 
occupancy by Moderate-, Low- or Very Low-Income Households.  For for-sale residential 
developments of fewer than fifteen units, the developer may elect, as an option, to satisfy the 
requirements of this section by paying the in-lieu fee described in section 5.12.090 or 
performing an Alternative Equivalent Action pursuant to section 5.12.1000 of this ordinance. 

(b) Time of Determination.  The number of Inclusionary Units required for a particular 
project will be determined only once, at the time of tentative or parcel map approval, or, for 
developments not processing a map, prior to issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. If a 
Conditional Use Permit is not required, the number of units required shall be determined at the 
time of building permit application.  If a change in the subdivision design results in a change in 
the total number of units, the number of Inclusionary Units required will be recalculated to 
coincide with the final approved project.  

(c) Calculation. For purposes of calculating the number of inclusionary units required by this 
Section, any additional units authorized as a density bonus under Section 5.12.120 of this 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 6 of 21 



ordinance and California Government Code Section 65915(b)(1) or (b)(2) will not be counted in 
determining the required number of Inclusionary Units. In determining the number of whole 
Inclusionary Units required, any decimal fraction shall be subject to In-Lieu Housing Fees as 
described in Section 5.12.090.  

(d) Type of Inclusionary Units. At least twenty percent (20%) of the Inclusionary Units (or 4 
percent of the total development) must be restricted to occupancy by Very Low-Income 
Households. An additional twenty percent (20%) of the Inclusionary Units (or 4 percent of the 
total development) must be restricted to occupancy by Low-Income Households. The remaining 
60% (or 12 percent of the total development) to Moderate Income Households.   

(e) Timing of Occupancy.  All Inclusionary Units must be constructed and occupied 
concurrently with or prior to the construction and occupancy of market-rate units or 
development.  In phased developments, Inclusionary Units may be constructed and occupied in 
proportion to the number of units in each phase of the residential development. 

5.12.050 For-Rent Residential Development 

(a) Housing Impact Fee Payment Required. For all for-rent Residential Development of 
five or more units, a Housing Impact Fee is required to be paid pursuant to Section 5.12.090.   

5.12.060 Non-Residential/Commercial Development 

(a) Housing Impact Fee Payment Required. For all Non-Residential/Commercial 
Development over 5,000 square feet, a Housing Impact Fee is required to be paid pursuant to 
Section 5.12.090. 

5.12.070 Exemptions 

The requirements of section 5.12.040, 5.12.050, and 5.12.060 do not apply to: 
 

(1) A residential development project to the extent it has received a vested right to 
proceed without payment of housing impact fees pursuant to state law. 

(2) Building permits for residential development projects if compliance with this 
section for such project has already been satisfied including, but not limited to, 
building permits on newly created lots where the subdivider has built affordable 
units or otherwise satisfied this section. 

(3) Any dwelling unit or residential development project which is damaged or 
destroyed by fire or natural catastrophes so long as the use of the reconstructed 
building and number of dwelling units remains the same, and the square footage 
of the reconstructed building is not increased or reduced by more than 10%. 

(4) Residential Development consisting of four or fewer units. 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 7 of 21 



(5) Non-Residential/Commercial Development that is 5,000 square feet or less. 

(6) Public Uses, including, but not limited to parks, playgrounds, and administrative 
and service facilities. 

(7) Child Care Centers, including Family Child Care Homes. 

(8) Recreational facilities for public use and enjoyment within commercial or 
industrial developments. 

(9) Cemetery developments of any type 

(10) Housing for the Elderly, residential care facilities, and skilled nursing facilities. 

(11) Property eligible for the California Property Tax Welfare Exemption in that it is 
(1) used exclusively for charitable purposes, and (2) owned or held in trust by 
nonprofit organizations operating for those purposes and that have a current tax 
exempt letter from the Internal Revenue Service or the Franchise Tax Board. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06; Ord. __,__/__/16] 

5.12.080 Basic Requirements for Inclusionary Units 

(a) Applicable Standards. All Inclusionary Units built under this subchapter shall conform to 
the standards set forth in this section. 

(b) Exterior Design. Inclusionary units shall be comparable in number of bedrooms, exterior 
appearance, infrastructure (including sewer, water and other utilities) and overall quality of 
construction to market rate units in the same residential project. With the approval of the City 
Manager, inclusionary units may be smaller in aggregate size and need not contain more than 
four bedrooms. 

(c) Interior Design. Subject to the approval of the City Manager, interior finishes in 
inclusionary units may not be the same as or equivalent to those in market rate units in the 
same residential project, so long as they are durable, of good quality and are consistent with 
contemporary standards for new housing. 

(d) Disbursal. Affordable units shall be dispersed throughout the residential project, or, 
subject to the approval of the City Manager, may be clustered within the residential project 
when this furthers affordable housing opportunities. 

(e) Agreement Required. Prior to the issuance of certificates of occupancy or approval of the 
final inspection for affordable units, regulatory agreements, resale restrictions, deed restrictions, 
deeds of trust and/or other documents, all of which must be acceptable to the City Manager 
and consistent with the requirements of this Subchapter, shall be recorded against parcels 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 8 of 21 



having such affordable units and shall be effective for a minimum of 45 years for owner-
occupied units. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.090 In-Lieu Fees and Housing Impact Fees 

(a) Applicability.   

(1) For For-Sale Residential development projects of fewer than fifteen units, 
including Inclusionary Units, the requirements of this Subchapter may be 
satisfied by paying an in-lieu fee to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund as 
provided in this section. 

(2) For For-Rent Residential development projects of five or more units, a Housing 
Impact Fee is required to be paid based on net new square footage of 
Residential Floor Area, excluding the square footage of units that are rented at 
an affordable rent to Moderate, Low or Very Low income households, so long as 
such units are deed restricted as such. 

(3) For Non-Residential/Commercial Developments over 5,000 square feet, a 
Housing Impact Fee is required to be paid based on net new square footage of 
Non-Residential/Commercial Development Floor Area. 

(b) Housing In-lieu Fee shall be in an amount equal to the Housing Impact Fee as set forth 
in the Town’s Master Fee Schedule, and shall be imposed based on net new square footage of 
Residential Floor Area, excluding the square footage of units that are sold at an affordable sale 
price Moderate, Low or Very Low income households, so long as such units are deed restricted 
as such. 

(c) Housing Impact Fee. The Housing Impact Fee shall be the fee established by the City to 
offset the impacts from the development of For-Rent Residential development and Non-
Residential/Commercial development, as adopted by resolution of the City Council and set forth 
in the Town’s Master Fee Schedule. 

(d) Timing of Payment. The In-lieu fee or Housing Impact Fee must be paid prior to the 
Town’s issuance of a building permit for the Development. For phased developments, payments 
may be made for each portion of the Development prior to Building Permit issuance for that 
phase.  

(e) Effect of No Payment. No building permit will be issued unless fees required under this 
Section have been paid in full to the City.  

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 9 of 21 



5.12.100 Alternative Equivalent Actions 

(a) A developer of a For-Sale Residential development project of fewer than fifteen units 
that is not, and has not been, part of a larger residential development project, may propose to 
meet the requirements of section 5.12.040 by an alternative equivalent action, subject to the 
review and approval by the City Council. The developer may propose an alternative equivalent 
action by submitting at the time of application for a discretionary or building permit, whichever 
comes first, a description of the proposed alternative equivalent action along with a report 
identifying: 

(1) How the alternative will further affordable housing opportunities in the Town to 
an equal or greater extent than compliance with the express requirements of 
Section 5.12.040(a), and that an over concentration of affordable housing in one 
area will not occur; 

(2) All overriding conditions impacting the project that prevent developer from 
meeting the requirement to construct the affordable units;  

(3) Sufficient independent data, including appropriate financial information, that 
supports the developer’s claim that it is not feasible to construct the required 
affordable units; and, 

(4) A detailed analysis of why the concessions and incentives identified in section 
5.12.110 and the density bonuses identified in section 5.12.120 will not mitigate 
the identified overriding conditions that are preventing the construction of the 
affordable units. 

(b) An alternative equivalent action may include, but is not limited to: 

(1) Land Donation.  An applicant may donate land to the Town or to a non-profit 
housing developer in place of actual construction of required affordable units. 
The dedicated land must be appropriately zoned, buildable, free of toxic 
substances and contaminated soils. The fair market value of the donated land 
shall be equivalent to the value of the construction and land costs of the required 
affordable units. The land that is donated shall include lots that are fully 
improved with infrastructure, adjacent utilities, and grading, and fees paid.  Land 
donated for the purpose of constructing units affordable to very-low income 
households may be eligible for a density bonus, as specified in Government Code 
Section 69515. 

(2) Off-site Construction.  Inclusionary Units may be constructed off-site if the 
Inclusionary Units will be located in an area where, based on the availability of 
affordable housing, the City Council finds that the need for such units is greater 
than the need in the area of the proposed development. 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 10 of 21 



(3) Combination.  The City Council may accept any combination of on-site 
construction, off-site construction, in-lieu fees and land dedication that at least 
equal the cost of providing Inclusionary Units on-site as would otherwise be 
required by this chapter. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.110 Concessions and Incentives 

(a) Eligibility. For For-Sale Residential development projects that meet the requirements of 
sections 5.12.040 through the construction of inclusionary units, or for For-Rent Residential 
development projects that choose to restrict certain units pursuant to the requirements of 
Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D), the Town shall follow the procedures below to 
provide the concessions or incentives described in this section. 

(b) Application. If requested by the applicant, within ninety (90) days of submittal by the 
developer of a written preliminary conceptual development proposal describing and specifying 
the number, type, location and size of the housing development, and identifying any requests 
for incentives, concessions, or waivers or modification of development or zoning standards, 
necessary to make construction feasible for the proposed development, prior to the submittal of 
any formal application for a discretionary approval (e.g., general plan amendment, rezoning, 
use permit, tentative subdivision or parcel map or other permit or entitlement), and meet with 
the applicant to discuss the proposed concessions or incentives.  

(c) Findings. The City Council, at the time it hears any entitlement application, shall grant 
the concessions or incentives requested by the applicant unless the Council makes a written 
finding, based upon substantial evidence, of either of the following: 

(1) The concession or incentive is not required in order to provide for affordable 
housing costs; 

(2) The concession or incentive would have a specific adverse impact, as defined in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 65589.5, upon 
public health and safety or the physical environment, or on any real property 
that is listed in the California Register of Historical Resources and for which there 
is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific adverse 
impact without rendering the development unaffordable to low- and moderate-
income households; or 

(3) The incentive or concession would be contrary to state or federal law. 

(d) Concessions or Incentives Granted. The City Council may provide one or more of the 
following concessions or incentives to a developer who elects to construct inclusionary housing 
units, or restrict certain units pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 
65915(b)(1)(A)-(D), in accordance with this subchapter by constructing or producing rental 
units or owner-occupied units on the site of a Residential Development.  

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 11 of 21 



(1) A full or prorated reduction in the number or type (covered or uncovered, 
tandem, etc) of off-street parking spaces required per dwelling unit; 

(2) Expedited Processing by all Town departments before other residential land use 
applications regardless of the original submittal date; 

(3) Deferred payment of all city-required fees on a residential development project 
until issuance of a certificate of occupancy; 

(4) Approval of mixed use zoning;  

(5) Financial assistance; or 

(6) Any other concession or incentive authorized by state law. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.120 Density Bonuses 

(a) Residential Development Project.  A Residential development project shall be eligible for 
a density bonus, as specified by Government Code Section 69515, if the project includes at 
least any one of the following: 

(1) Ten percent of the total units are affordable to low income households. 

(2) Five percent of the total units are affordable to very-low income households. 

(3) Ten percent of the total units in a for-sale project are affordable to moderate 
income households. 

(4) Senior citizen housing, as defined in Sections 51.3 and 51.12 of the Civil Code. 

(5) A child-care facility, subject to the criteria identified in Government Code Section 
69515.  

(b) Land Donation.  An applicant for a tentative subdivision map, a parcel map, or other 
residential development approval shall be eligible for a density bonus, as specified by 
Government Code Section 69515, if the applicant donates land to the Town for the 
development of units affordable to very-low income households, in addition to land donated in 
accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.130 Compliance Procedures 

(a) General. Approval of an Inclusionary Housing Plan and implementation of an approved 
Inclusionary Housing Agreement is required for any For-Sale Residential development project 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 12 of 21 



that includes Inclusionary Units.  It is also required for any For-Rent Residential development 
project that chooses to restrict certain units pursuant to the requirements of Government Code 
Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D).  It is not required, however, for exempt projects or for projects 
where the requirements of this subchapter are completely satisfied by payment of a fee under 
section 5.12.090. 

(b) Time for Compliance.  An applicant for any Development required to comply with this 
Section, shall submit a preliminary plan to the Town detailing how the Development intends to 
comply with the requirements of this subchapter, at the time of submittal of application 
materials for a tentative map, parcel map, or any other discretionary permit or entitlement 
needed for the project. No application for a tentative map, parcel map or building permit to 
which this Chapter applies may be deemed complete until a preliminary plan is submitted to the 
Town.  The Town shall impose, as a condition of approval, the requirement that the 
Development seek the approval of an Inclusionary Housing Plan and implementation of an 
approved Inclusionary Housing Agreement.  The Inclusionary Housing Plan shall be required to 
be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to final map approval and recordation, or prior to 
the first building permit issuance, whichever comes first.   

(c) Inclusionary Housing Plan. The City Council must approve, conditionally approve or 
reject the Inclusionary Housing Plan within 60 days of the date of a complete application for 
that approval. If the Inclusionary Housing Plan is incomplete, the Inclusionary Housing Plan will 
be returned to the Developer along with a list of the deficiencies or the information required. At 
any time during the review process, the Town may require from the Developer additional 
information reasonably necessary to clarify and supplement the application or determine the 
consistency of the proposed Inclusionary Housing Plan with the requirements of this Chapter. 
The Inclusionary Housing Plan must include:  

(1) The location, structure (attached, semi-attached, or detached), proposed tenure 
(for sale or rental), and size of the proposed market-rate, commercial space 
and/or Inclusionary Units and the basis for calculating the number of 
Inclusionary Units;  

(2) A floor or site plan depicting the location of the Inclusionary Units;  

(3) The income levels to which each Inclusionary Unit will be made affordable; 

(4) The mechanisms that will be used to assure that the units remain affordable for 
the desired term, such as resale and rental restrictions, deeds of trust, and rights 
of first refusal and other documents;  

(5) For phased Development, a phasing plan that provides for the timely 
development of the number of Inclusionary Units proportionate to each proposed 
phase of development.  

(6) A description of any incentives that are requested of City;  

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 13 of 21 



(7) Any alternative equivalent actions proposed for the Development along with 
information necessary to support the findings required by this Subchapter for 
approval of such alternatives;  

(8) The sequence in which the different levels of Inclusionary Units shall be built and 
occupied, for example, the first Inclusionary Unit may only be occupied by a 
Very-Low Income Household, the second Inclusionary Unit by a Low-Income 
Household, etc.  

(9) Any other information reasonably requested by the City to assist with evaluation 
of the Plan under the standards of this Chapter.  

(d) Inclusionary Housing Agreement. The forms of the Inclusionary Housing Agreement, 
resale and rental restrictions, deeds of trust, rights of first refusal and other documents 
authorized by this subsection, and any change in the form of any such document which 
materially alters any policy in the document, must be approved by the City Manager or his or 
her designee prior to being executed with respect to any Residential Development or Affordable 
Housing Proposals. The form of the Inclusionary Housing Agreement will vary, depending on 
the manner in which the provisions of this Chapter are satisfied for a particular development. All 
Inclusionary Housing Agreements must include, at minimum, the following:  

(1) Description of the development, including whether the Inclusionary Units will be 
rented or owner-occupied;  

(2) The number, size and location of Very Low-, Low- or Moderate-Income Units;  

(3) Inclusionary incentives by the City (if any), including the nature and amount of 
any local public funding;  

(4) Provisions and/or documents for resale restrictions, deeds of trust, rights of first 
refusal or rental restrictions; 

(5) Provisions for monitoring the ongoing affordability of the units, and the process 
for qualifying prospective resident Households for income eligibility; and aAny 
additional obligations relevant to the compliance with this Chapter. 

(e) Recording of Agreement. Inclusionary Housing Agreements that are acceptable to the 
City Manager must be recorded against owner-occupied Inclusionary Units and Residential 
development projects that choose to restrict certain units pursuant to the requirements of 
Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D). Additional rental or resale restrictions, deeds of 
trust, rights of first refusal and/or other documents acceptable to the City Manager must also 
be recorded against owner-occupied Inclusionary Units. In cases where the requirements of this 
Chapter are satisfied through the development of Off-Site Units, the Inclusionary Housing 
Agreement must simultaneously be recorded against the property where the Off-Site Units are 
to be developed. 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 14 of 21 



(f) Annual Monitoring and Transfer Fees. 

(1) For each rental unit restricted pursuant to the requirements of Government Code 
Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D), the then current owner may be required to pay an 
annual monitoring fee for the term of required affordability. Such fee shall be 
specified in the regulatory agreement(s) required hereunder. 

(2) For each owner-occupied inclusionary unit provided under this section, the then 
current owner may be required to pay a transfer fee for any change of 
ownership during the term of required affordability. Such fee shall be specified in 
the Inclusionary Housing Agreement required hereunder. 

(g) Requirements for Certificate of Occupancy/Final Inspection. 

(1) No temporary or permanent certificate of occupancy shall be issued or final 
inspection approval for any dwelling unit in a Residential development project 
until the developer has satisfactorily completed the requirements hereunder, i.e., 
on-site construction of affordable units, alternative equivalent action(s), or 
payment of the housing in-lieu fee or housing impact fee. 

(2) No temporary or permanent certificate of occupancy shall be issued or final 
inspection approved for a dwelling unit described as exempt from the 
requirements of this Subchapter in section 5.12.070 above until the developer 
has made a showing acceptable to the City Manager that such an exemption is 
appropriate. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06; Ord 738, 1/14/15] 

5.12.140 Eligibility for Inclusionary Units 

(a) General Eligibility. No Household may occupy an Inclusionary Unit, or rent a unit 
restricted pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D), 
unless the City Manager has approved the Household’s eligibility, or has failed to make a 
determination of eligibility within the time or other limits provided by an Inclusionary Housing 
Agreement or resale restriction. If the City or its designee maintains a list or identifies eligible 
Households, initial and subsequent occupants will be selected first from the list of identified 
Households, to the maximum extent possible, in accordance with any rules approved by the City 
Manager. If the City has failed to identify a Household as an eligible buyer for the initial sale of 
an Inclusionary Unit that is intended for owner-occupancy 90 days after the unit receives a 
completed final inspection for occupancy, upon 90 additional days’ notice to the City and on 
satisfaction of such further conditions as may be included in City-approved restrictions (which 
may include a further opportunity to identify an eligible buyer), the owner may sell the unit at a 
market price, and the unit will not be subject to any requirement of this Subchapter thereafter.  

(b) Conflict of Interest. The following individuals are ineligible to purchase an Inclusionary 
Unit, or rent a unit restricted pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 15 of 21 



65915(b)(1)(A)-(D): (i) City employees and officials (and their immediate family members) who 
have policy-making authority or influence regarding City housing programs and do not qualify 
as having a remote interest as provided by California Government Code Section 1091; (ii) the 
Project Applicant and its officers and employees (and their immediate family members); and (iii) 
the Project Owner and its officers and employees (and their immediate family members).  

(c) Occupancy. Any Household who purchases an Inclusionary Unit, or rents a unit 
restricted pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D), must 
occupy that unit as a principal residence.  

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.150 Owner-Occupied Units 

(a) Initial Sales Price. The initial sales price of the Inclusionary Unit must be set so that the 
eligible Household will pay an Affordable Sales Price.  

(b) Transfer. Renewed restrictions will be entered into on each change of ownership, with a 
45-year renewal term, upon transfer of an owner-occupied Inclusionary Unit prior to the 
expiration of the 45-year affordability period.  

(c) Resale. The maximum sales price permitted on resale of an Inclusionary Unit designated 
for owner-occupancy shall be the lower of: (1) fair market value or (2) the seller’s lawful 
purchase price, increased by the lesser of (i) the rate of increase of Area Median Income during 
the seller’s ownership or (ii) the rate at which the consumer price index increased during the 
seller’s ownership. To the extent authorized in any resale restrictions or operative Inclusionary 
Housing Agreement, sellers may recover at time of sale the market value of capital 
improvements made by the seller and the seller’s necessary and usual costs of sale, and may 
authorize an increase in the maximum allowable sales price to achieve such recovery. 

(d) Changes in Title. Title in the Inclusionary Unit may change due to changes in 
circumstance, including death, marriage and divorce. Except as otherwise provided by this 
Subsection, if a change in title is occasioned by events that changes the financial situation of 
the Household so that it is no longer income-eligible, then the property must be sold to an 
income-eligible Household within 180 days. Upon the death of one of the owners, title in the 
property may transfer to the surviving joint tenant without respect to the income-eligibility of 
the Household. Upon the death of a sole owner or all owners and inheritance of the 
Inclusionary Unit by a non-income-eligible child or stepchild of one or more owners, there will 
be a one year compassion period between the time when the estate is settled and the time 
when the property must be sold to an income-eligible Household. Inheritance of an Inclusionary 
Unit by any other person whose Household is not income-eligible shall require resale of the unit 
to an income-eligible Household as soon as is feasible but not more than 180 days.  

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 16 of 21 



5.12.160 Rental Units 

(a) Rental Requirement. Rental units restricted pursuant to the requirements of Government 
Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D) shall be offered to Households consistent with the applicable 
restriction provided for in subsection (A) through (D) in Government Code Section 65915(b)(1). 
The owner of such units shall certify each tenant Household’s income to the City or City’s 
designee at the time of initial rental and annually thereafter. The owner must obtain and review 
documents that demonstrate the prospective renter’s total income, such as income tax returns 
or W-2s for the previous calendar year, and submit such information on a form approved by the 
City.  

(b) Selection of Tenants. The owners of rental units restricted pursuant to the requirements 
of Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D) may fill vacant units by selecting income-
eligible Households from the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Waiting List maintained by the 
City or City’s designee. Alternatively, owners may fill vacant units through their own selection 
process, provided that they publish notices of the availability of the rental units according to 
guidelines established by the City Manager. 

(c) Annual Report. The owner shall submit an annual report summarizing the occupancy of 
each rental unit for the year, demonstrating the continuing income-eligibility of the tenant. The 
City Manager may require additional information if he or she deems it necessary. 

(d) Subsequent Rental to Income-Eligible Tenant. The owner shall apply the same rental 
terms and conditions to tenants of rental units restricted pursuant to the requirements of 
Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D) as are applied to all other tenants, except as 
required to comply with this Subchapter (for example, rent levels, occupancy restrictions and 
income requirements) or with other applicable government subsidy programs. Discrimination 
against persons receiving housing assistance is prohibited.  

(e) Changes in Tenant Income. If, after moving into an Inclusionary Unit, a tenant’s 
Household income exceeds the limit for that unit, the tenant Household may remain in the unit 
as long as his or her Household income does not exceed 140 percent of the income limit. Once 
the tenant’s income exceeds 140 percent of the income limit, the following shall apply:  

(1) If the tenant’s income does not exceed the income limits of other Inclusionary 
Units in the Residential Development, the owner may, at the owner’s option, 
allow the tenant to remain in the original unit and re-designate the unit as 
affordable to Households of a higher income level, as long as the next vacant 
unit is re-designated for the income category previously applicable to the 
tenant’s Household. Otherwise, the tenant shall be given one year’s notice to 
vacate the unit. If during the year, another rental unit becomes available and the 
tenant meets the income eligibility for that unit, the owner shall allow the tenant 
to apply for that unit.  

(2) If there are no units designated for a higher income category within the 
Development that may be substituted for the original unit, the tenant shall be 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 17 of 21 



given one year’s notice to vacate the unit. If within that year, another unit in the 
Residential Development is vacated, the owner may, at the owner’s option, allow 
the tenant to remain in the original unit and raise the tenant’s rent to market-
rate and restrict the newly vacated unit as affordable at the income-level 
previously applicable to the unit converted to market rate. The newly vacated 
unit must be comparable in size (for example, number of bedrooms, bathrooms, 
square footage, etc.) as the original unit.  

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.170 Housing Fund 

(a) Establishment.  The Town of Colma Affordable Housing Fund (the “Housing Fund”) shall 
be and is hereby established. Separate accounts within such Housing Fund may be created from 
time to time to avoid commingling as required by law or as deemed appropriate to further the 
purposes of the Fund. 

(b) Administration.  The Housing Fund shall be administered by the City Manager, who shall 
have the authority to govern the Housing Fund consistent with this Subchapter, and to make 
recommendations on the use of the Fund, subject to review and approval by the Council.  

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.180 Purposes and Use of  Housing Fund 

(a) Monies deposited in the Housing Fund along with any interest earnings on such monies 
shall be used solely to increase and improve the supply of housing affordable to households of 
moderate-, low- and very low-income households. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.190 Delegation of Authority 

The City Manager shall be and hereby is authorized to delegate his or her authority under this 
ordinance. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.200 Minimum Requirements 

The requirements of this Chapter are minimum and maximum requirements, although nothing 
in this Section limits the ability of a private person to waive his or her rights or voluntarily 
undertake greater obligations than those imposed by this Chapter. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 18 of 21 



5.12.210 Adjustments, Waivers 

(a) A developer of any project subject to the requirements of this Chapter may appeal to 
the City Council for a reduction, adjustment, or waiver of the requirements based upon the 
absence of any reasonable relationship or nexus between the impact of the development and 
either the amount of the fee charged or the inclusionary requirement, except where the 
requirements are imposed by law. 

(b) A developer subject to the requirements of this Chapter who has received an approved 
tentative subdivision or parcel map, use permit or similar discretionary approval and who 
submits a new or revised tentative subdivision or parcel map, use permit or similar discretionary 
approval for the same property may appeal for a reduction, adjustment or waiver of the 
requirements with respect to the number of lots or square footage of construction previously 
approved, except where the requirements are imposed by law. 

(c) Any such appeal shall be made in writing and filed with the City Clerk not later than ten 
(10) calendar days before the first public hearing on any discretionary approval or permit for 
the development, or if no such discretionary approval or permit is required, or if the action 
complained of occurs after the first public hearing on such permit or approval, the appeal shall 
be filed within ten (10) calendar days after payment of the fees objected to.   

(d) The appeal shall set forth in detail the factual and legal basis for the claim of waiver, 
reduction, or adjustment.  The City Council shall consider the appeal at the public hearing on 
the permit application or at a separate hearing within sixty (60) calendar days after the filing of 
the appeal, whichever is later.  The appellant shall bear the burden of presenting substantial 
evidence to support the appeal including comparable technical information to support 
appellant's position.  

(e) No waiver shall be approved by the City Council for a new tentative subdivision or parcel 
map, use permit or similar discretionary approval on property with an approved tentative 
subdivision or parcel map, use permit or similar discretionary permit unless the Council finds 
that the new tentative subdivision or parcel map, use permit or similar discretionary approval is 
superior to the approved project both in its design and its mitigation of environmental impacts.  
The decision of the Council shall be final.  If a reduction, adjustment, or waiver is granted, any 
change in the project shall invalidate the waiver, adjustment, or reduction of the fee or 
inclusionary requirement. 

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 

5.12.220 Enforcement Provisions 

(a) Penalty for Violation. It shall be a misdemeanor to violate any provision of this Chapter. 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it shall also be a misdemeanor for any person 
to sell or rent to another person an inclusionary unit, or a unit restricted pursuant to the 
requirements of Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D) under this Chapter at a price or 
rent exceeding the maximum allowed under this Chapter or to sell an inclusionary unit, or rent 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 19 of 21 



a unit restricted pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D), 
to a Household not qualified under this Chapter or state law. It shall further be a misdemeanor 
for any person to provide false or materially incomplete information to the City or to a seller of 
an Inclusionary Unit, or lessor of a unit restricted pursuant to the requirements of Government 
Code Section 65915(b)(1)(A)-(D), to obtain occupancy of housing for which he or she is not 
eligible.  

(b) Legal Action. The City may institute any appropriate legal actions or proceedings 
necessary to ensure compliance with this Chapter, including: (i) actions to revoke, deny or 
suspend any permit, including a Building Permit, certificate of occupancy, or discretionary 
approval; (ii) actions to recover from any violator of this Chapter civil fines, restitution to 
prevent unjust enrichment from a violation of this Chapter, and/or enforcement costs, including 
attorneys fees; (iii) eviction or foreclosure; and (iv) any other appropriate action for injunctive 
relief or damages. Failure of any official or agency to fulfill the requirements of this Chapter 
shall not excuse any person, owner, Household or other party from the requirements of this 
Chapter.  

[History: Ord. 639, 1/11/06] 
 

ARTICLE 2 SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 3 NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

 
ARTICLE 4 EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 
 

 

 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 20 of 21 



Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on September ___, 2016 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on September ___, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       

Joseph Silva      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

 
 
Ord No. __ Inclusionary and Affordable Housing (Introduced 9/14/16) Page 21 of 21 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Appointing City Manager as City Treasurer 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

Introduce: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 1.03.105, REGARDING 
THE CITY TREASURER’S DUTIES, AND WAIVE FURTHER READING  

Adopt: 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING SEAN RABÉ AS CITY TREASURER 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff recommends that the City Council amend Section 1.03.105 of the Colma Municipal Code 
(“CMC”) to vest all authority over the City Treasurer in the City Council. Staff also recommends 
that the City Council adopt a resolution appointing Sean Rabé as City Treasurer in order to 
ensure continuity in who holds that position. With this amendment to the CMC, the offices of 
City Manager and City Treasurer will not be incompatible, and Mr. Rabé can assume the duties 
of both offices. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

BACKGROUND 

At the General Municipal Election conducted in the Town of Colma on Tuesday, November 2, 
2010, the voters of the Town of Colma passed Measure Q and adopted Ordinance 693-A, “An 
Ordinance Amending the Colma Municipal Code to Make the City Treasurer an Appointive 
Office.” Said ordinance was codified as Section 1.03.100 of the Colma Municipal Code, and took 
effect on expiration of the term of office of the incumbent City Treasurer, on  December 9, 
2014 when the City Council of the Town of Colma declared the results of the November 4, 2014 
election.  At that time, Charlie Francis, an outside consultant, and former Town Finance 

Staff Report re Appointing City Manager as City Treasurer Page 1 of 2 

Item #3



Director, was appointed by the City Council to serve as City Treasurer.  He served in that 
position until he left the consulting business and stopped working with the Town. 

ANALYSIS 

In order to ensure continuity in who serves as the City Treasurer, it is recommended that the 
City Council appoint an employee as City Treasurer, with the City Manager being the best 
person to fill that position.   
 
The City Manager can also serve as the City Treasurer based on California law. However, it is 
recommended that the Municipal Code be amended to eliminate any oversight the City Manager 
has over the City Treasurer to ensure there is no incompatibility in the two offices. Under 
California law, Government Code Section 1099, there is a prohibition against holding 
incompatible offices which concerns a potential clash of two public offices held by a single 
official. Typically, the prohibition manifests itself when one office exercises jurisdiction over the 
other office. Thus, the prohibition concerns a conflict between potentially overlapping public 
duties residing in a single officer. 
 
The Municipal Code currently grants the City Manager limited authority over the City Treasurer 
in Section 1.03.105. To ensure there is no incompatibility between the offices of City Manager 
and City Treasurer, staff recommends the City Council amend the CMC to vest any authority 
over the City Treasurer in the City Council. 
 
Staff also recommends Sean Rabé be appointed as City Treasurer.  
 
Values 

By introducing the ordinance and adopting the resolution, the City Council is being both 
responsible and visionary by looking towards the future and ensuring stability in the City 
Treasurer position thereby ensuring the safekeeping of the Town’s funds. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to amend the CMC and instead appoint another individual to 
the position of City Treasurer. Doing so is not recommended, however, as no other staff person 
at the Town exists to readily fill the position. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance  
B. Resolution 

 
 

Staff Report re Appointing City Manager as City Treasurer Page 2 of 2 
 



ORDINANCE NO.___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 1.03.105, 
REGARDING THE CITY TREASURER’S DUTIES 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) At the General Municipal Election held and conducted in the Town of Colma, County of 
San Mateo, California on Tuesday, November 2, 2010, the voters of the Town of Colma passed 
Measure Q and adopted Ordinance 693-A, “An Ordinance Amending the Colma Municipal Code 
to Make the City Treasurer an Appointive Office.” Said ordinance was codified as section 
1.03.100 of the Colma Municipal Code and took effect on expiration of the term of office of the 
incumbent City Treasurer, i.e. on December 9, 2014 when the City Council of the Town of 
Colma declared the results of the November 4, 2014 election.  

(b) Pursuant to said ordinance, the City Council desires to appoint City Manager Sean Rabé 
as City Treasurer. 

(c) The offices of City Manager and City Treasurer are not incompatible because the City 
Manager does not exercise supervisory authority over the City Treasurer. Rather, that authority 
is vested in the City Council. 

(d) The current Colma Municipal Code (“CMC”) grants the City Manager limited authority 
over the City Treasurer pursuant to CMC Section 1.03.105. To ensure there is no incompatibility 
between the offices of City Manager and City Treasurer, the City Council desires to amend 
Section 1.03.105 to vest any authority over the City Treasurer in the City Council.  

(e) This ordinance also amends the applicable provisions of the Colma Municipal Code to 
remove other additional language that is best suited for the Colma Administrative Code. 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report 
presented herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings 
of the City Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 1.03.105 AMENDED. 

Section 1.03.105 shall be and hereby is amended as follows: 

1.03.105 City Treasurer’s Duties. 

Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re City Treasurer Page 1 of 3 

Attachment A



(a) City Council.  The City Council has ultimate authority and direction over all Town 
finances and investments. 

(b) City Manager. The City Manager is responsible for the overall management of the 
financial affairs of the Town. 

(c) City Treasurer. Subject to the City Manager Council’s overall management and 
supervision, the City Treasurer shall manage the day-to-day accounting and cash management 
functions of the Town; receive and safely keep Town funds; transfer Town funds from or to the 
different Town accounts; pay Town obligations; receive and hold bonds or other security 
instruments; establish and maintain a system of internal controls over Town assets; and submit 
financial reports to the City Council on a timely basis, and have the ability to appoint a Deputy 
Treasurer(s) who can act in the absence of the City Treasurer. The City Council has assigned 
specific investment authority to the City Treasurer, as specified in the Colma Administrative 
Code.  The City Treasurer may establish accounts at banks, on conditions approved by the City 
Council, to pay the principal and interest of bonds, to pay any warrant that has been presented 
for payment, or to fund any electronic disbursement of funds from the treasury of the local 
agency.  The City Treasurer may, with Council approval, deposit other funds and transfer 
deposits among City accounts. The City Treasurer may make an annual report to the City 
Council  on the City’s investment policy.  He or she may also make quarterly reports to the City 
Manager, the City’s auditor and the City Council on the Town’s investments.  

 

ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 5. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

 
ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certificate of Adoption 

Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re City Treasurer  Page 2 of 3 
 



I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. __ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 28, 2016 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on October __, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       

Joseph Silva      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 

Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re City Treasurer  Page 3 of 3 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING SEAN RABÉ AS 
CITY TREASURER 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) At the General Municipal Election held and conducted in the Town of Colma, County of
San Mateo, California, on Tuesday, November 2, 2010, the voters of the Town of Colma passed 
Measure Q and adopted Ordinance 693-A, “An Ordinance Amending the Colma Municipal Code 
to Make the City Treasurer an Appointive Office.” Said ordinance was codified as section 
1.03.100 of the Colma Municipal Code, and took effect on expiration of the term of office of the 
incumbent City Treasurer, i.e., on December 9, 2014 when the City Council of the Town of 
Colma declared the results of the November 4, 2014 election. 

(b) Charlie Francis, an outside consultant and the Town’s previous Finance Director, served 
as the City Treasurer until his departure with the Town. 

(c) In an effort to ensure continuity in who serves in the City Treasurer position, it is 
recommended that City Manager Sean Rabé serve as the City Treasurer with the assistance of 
our Finance staff. 

(d) In order to appoint City Manager Sean Rabé as City Treasurer, a Municipal Code 
amendment is being brought forth to amend the Municipal Code to eliminate any control or 
oversight the City Manager previously had over the City Treasurer position. 

(e) The offices of City Manager and City Treasurer are not incompatible under the law 
because the City Council will continue to maintain control and oversight over the City Treasurer 
position and the City Manager does not have any legal control over the City Treasurer position 
with the pending Municipal Code amendment.  

2. Order

(a) The City Council hereby appoints Sean Rabé as City Treasurer of the Town of Colma.

(b) The term of office shall continue until such time that the Council makes a new
appointment, or the City Manager indicates a desire to no longer serve in the position. 

(c) The City Treasurer’s duties shall be fulfilled without any additional compensation beyond 
that provided for in the duties of City Manager. 

3. Effective Date

(a) This resolution shall not be effective until such time that the corresponding Ordinance
No. ___ amending Municipal Code Section 1.03.105 is deemed effective which shall be 30 days 
after the date of adoption (anticipated to be November 11, 2016). 

Res. 2016-__, Appointing Sean Rabé as City Treasurer Page 1 of 2 

Attachment B



Certification of Adoption   
 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 28, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting 
  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro        
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 

Res. 2016-__, Appointing Sean Rabé as City Treasurer  Page 2 of 2 
 



STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Grant Funding Request for Daly City Public Library Associates 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A GRANT TO DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES, 
FINDING THAT THE GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING A 
CONTRACT WITH DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES FOR THE USE OF TOWN 
FUNDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would find that the Daly City Public Library Associates has met all the 
criteria and is therefore eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma, that the approved 
grant serves a public purpose and is not a gift of public funds, and that the grant should be 
approved and authorized as follows: 

Grantee Proposed Grant Amount 
Daly City Public Library Associates $2,000 

The proposed grant amount is an increase of $1,000 from last year’s funded amount due to a 
drop in funding from Daly City.  

This separate action is required for Daly City Public Library Associates due to a conflict of 
interest for one Council Member. Other funding requests will be heard under a separate agenda 
item.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2016-17 budget includes a total of $103,000 for grant funding (spread through various 
departments).  

Staff Report re DCPLA Grant Funding 2016  Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\29193202.1
8/30/16  

Item #4



BACKGROUND 

The Town’s process for non-profit funding requests, as outlined in subchapter 4.03 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, spells out several requirements for organizations to be funded by the 
Town.  

Grants may be made to three types of eligible organizations: 501(c)(3) charities, government 
entities, and the Chamber of Commerce. In addition, the organization must meet a basic rough 
proportionality requirement which means: the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma (for example, a 
food pantry that serves residents of San Mateo County); the organization’s governing board 
must reflect the diverse interests of the community; and the organization must have policies 
and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a 
general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

To help guide the nonprofits in identifying a public purpose in their requested program and 
assist the Council in making that determination, five categories of qualifying programs or 
projects are established in the Administrative Code. To qualify for a grant, the program or 
project to be funded must: 

(1) Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  

(2) Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or  
Integrated Care Services; 

(3) Educate and engage residents; 

(4) Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 
in the Town; or 

(5) Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

The $103,000 in available funding is broken down into three discrete budget line items: 
$45,000 allocated to the General Services budget specifically for economic development 
promotion (line item Grants); $50,000 allocated to the City Council budget under the line item 
Donations; and $8,000 allocated to the Planning Department budget under the line item Legal 
Mandates.  

ANALYSIS 

The Council must make two determinations with respect to this application: first, that the 
applicant meets the criteria for an eligible organization set forth in section 4.03.030 of the 
Colma Administrative Code, and second, that each proposed use of funds will serve a public 

Staff Report re DCPLA Grant Funding 2016   Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\29193202.1  
8/30/16  



purpose, as set forth in section 4.03.020 of the Colma Administrative Code. There is substantial 
evidence in the application to support findings on each of these determinations. 

Findings of Organizational Eligibility 

Daly City Public Library Associates (“Library Associates”) is registered with the California 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is 
to raise private funds to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly City. The 
Town of Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow materials from 
any of the Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited by the support 
provided to the Daly City Library by Library Associates.  

Library Associates has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the terms 
and conditions of all grants are satisfied. Further, it has not participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

Findings of Public Purpose 

The expenditure of public funds to assist in the purchase of basic library materials for the library 
system, as requested by the Daly City Public Library Associates, could be provided by the Town 
but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town could provide these same services 
through its Recreation Services program. In that case, the Town would likely expend the 
amount of the grant to provide these services.  

Values 

By providing public funds for charitable purposes, the Council is being compassionate to the 
needs of others. At the same time, by adhering to the Council’s policies and procedures, the 
Council is acting with responsibility. 

Alternatives 

The Council could fund the Daly City Public Library Associates at a level higher or lower than the 
requested amount. Increasing the funding, however, could impact the available grant funding.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council approve the attached resolution which sets grant funding levels 
at the requested amount for the Daly City Public Library Associates. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Funding request 

Staff Report re DCPLA Grant Funding 2016   Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\29193202.1  
8/30/16  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A GRANT TO DALY CITY PULIC LIBRARY 
ASSOCIATES, FINDING THAT THE GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND 
AUTHORIZING CONTRACT WITH DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES 

FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Pursuant to subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code and the police power
granted to cities by the California Constitution, the Town of Colma may expend public money by 
making grants upon finding that the organization is eligible for grant funding, the expenditure 
will serve a public purpose, and for an expenditure that provides benefits to the public and 
private persons at the same time, there is a direct and substantial benefit to the public with 
only an incidental benefit to private persons.  

(b) To be eligible, an organization must be an IRC 501(c)(3) charity, a governmental entity, 
or a chamber of commerce. In addition, the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma, the organization’s 
governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community, and the organization must 
have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

(c) Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for 
a general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

(d) An organization may submit a request for determination of eligibility for grant funding, 
which shall include documents and information described in section 4.03.050 of the Colma 
Administrative Code.  Each year after a determination of eligibility has been made, an 
organization need only update each item of new or changed information. 

(e) An organization may submit an application for a charitable donation for each program or 
project to be funded. 

2. Findings of Eligibility for Grant Funding

The City Council has reviewed the funding requests from Daly City Public Library Associates and 
finds as follows: 

(a) Daly City Public Library Associates (“Library Associates”) is eligible for grant funding 
from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Library Associates is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS 
stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to raise 

Res. 2016-##, DCPLA Grant Funding 2016 Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\29193207.1
8/29/16  

Attachment A



private funds to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly City. The 
Town Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow materials 
from any of the Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited by the 
support provided to the Daly City Library by Library Associates.   

(b) Library Associates has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the 
terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

3. Findings of Public Purpose 

The City Council has reviewed the application for grant funds from the Daly City Public Library 
Associates and finds as follows: 

(a) A grant in the amount of $2,000 to the Daly City Public Library Associates will serve a 
public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for basic library materials, as 
requested by the Daly City Public Library Associates could be provided by the Town but 
for the fact that the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town could provide 
these same services through its Recreation Services Department. In that case, the Town 
would likely expend the amount of the grant to provide these services.  

(b) None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, 
national and regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee 
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

4. Order 

(a) The City Council approves grant funding of $2,000 to the Daly City Public Library 
Associates.  

(b) The Grantee must execute a Grant Agreement with the Town before any funds may be 
paid. The Grant Agreement shall include a statement of the goal or purpose of the Grant, a time 
within which the goal is expected to be achieved, and reporting requirements. 

Certification of Adoption 
 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 28, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro       

Res. 2016-##, DCPLA Grant Funding 2016 Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\29193207.1  
8/29/16  



Raquel Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

Res. 2016-##, DCPLA Grant Funding 2016 Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\29193207.1  
8/29/16  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment B









STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, APPROVING GRANTS 
TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT EACH APPROVED GRANT SERVES A 
PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS WITH EACH ELIGIBLE 
ORGANIZATION FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would find that each of the following organizations has met all the 
criteria and is therefore eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma, that each approved 
grant serves a public purpose and is not a gift of public funds, and that grants should be 
approved and authorized as proposed by Staff: 

Grantee Amount Funded 
FY 2015-16 

FY 2016-17 
Grantee Request 

FY 2016-17 
Staff Proposed 
Grant Amount 

Clinic by the Bay $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 
Colma - Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 
Community Gatepath $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 
Daly City Peninsula Partnership 
Collaborative N/A $25,000 $10,000 
Daly City Youth Health Center $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 
Human Investment Project (HIP 
Housing) 1 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 
LifeMoves (formerly InnVision 
Shelter Network) 2 $3,000 $5,000 $3,000 
Jefferson Union School District 
(Wilderness School) $7,000 $3,000 $3,000 
North Peninsula Food Pantry & 
DCDC $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 

1 Funding to come from Legal Mandates line item in Planning Department budget 
2 Funding to come from Legal Mandates line item in Planning Department budget 
Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding  Page 1 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1
9/6/16  

Item #5



Peninsula Conflict Resolution 
Center $1,312 $1,313 $1,313  
Peninsula Television  N/A $3,000 $0 
Sitike Counseling Center $6,000 $8,000 $6,000  
San Mateo Community College 
Foundation (Skyline College 
President's Innovation Fund) $600 $600 $600  
SMC Jobs for Youth $500 $500 $500  
Sustainable San Mateo County $3,000 $4,000 $3,000  
West Bay Alano Club  $3,000 $5,000 $0  

TOTALS $99,9123 $131,9134 $101,9135 

A total of $131,913 has been requested by the various entities (including the Daly City Public 
Library Associates, which was addressed in the previous agenda item due to a conflict of 
interest for one Council Member), while only $103,000 was allocated in the budget. This leaves 
a $32,913 deficit in funding. 

If Council approves the funding levels as proposed by Staff, a $913 deficit will occur. Staff 
anticipates enough cushion in the General Services budget (where the grant for the Chamber of 
Commerce is funded) to accommodate this overage.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2016-17 budget includes a total of $103,000 for grant funding (spread through various 
departments).  

BACKGROUND 

The Town’s process for non-profit funding requests, as outlined in subchapter 4.03 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, spells out several requirements for organizations to be funded by the 
Town.  

Grants may be made to three types of eligible organizations: 501(c)(3) charities, government 
entities, and the Chamber of Commerce. In addition, the organization must meet a basic rough 
proportionality requirement which means: the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma (for example, a 
food pantry that serves residents of San Mateo County); the organization’s governing board 
must reflect the diverse interests of the community; and the organization must have policies 
and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a 
general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

3 Note this amount includes $1,000 in funding for DCPLA.  
4 Note this amount includes $2,000 in funding requested by DCPLA. 
5 Note this amount does not include the funding for DCPLA, which was addressed in the previous agenda item.  
Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 2 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  

                                           



To help guide the nonprofits in identifying a public purpose in their requested program and 
assist the Council in making that determination, five categories of qualifying programs or 
projects are established in the Administrative Code. To qualify for a grant, the program or 
project to be funded must: 

(1) Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  

(2) Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or  
Integrated Care Services; 

(3) Educate and engage residents; 

(4) Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 
in the Town; or 

(5) Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

The $103,000 in available funding is broken down into three discrete budget line items: 
$45,000 allocated to the General Services budget specifically for economic development 
promotion (line item Grants); $50,000 allocated to the City Council budget under the line item 
Donations; and $8,000 allocated to the Planning Department budget under the line item Legal 
Mandates. 

This is the first year where requested funds have exceeded the available, budgeted amount. 
Staff’s proposed grant amounts reflect the same level of funding as was approved in Fiscal Year 
2015-16 for those entities that were funded that year. Of course the City Council has ultimate 
discretion regarding the actual amount of funding granted; however, if City Council opts to 
increase the proposed funding beyond the available budget, a budget amendment will need to 
be processed at a future meeting. The only available source of additional funding at this time 
would be reserves.  

ANALYSIS 

The Council must make two determinations with respect to each application: first, that the 
applicant meets the criteria for an eligible organization set forth in section 4.03.030 of the 
Colma Administrative Code, and second, that each proposed use of funds will serve a public 
purpose, as set forth in section 4.03.020 of the Colma Administrative Code. There is substantial 
evidence in each application to support findings on each of these determinations. 

Findings of Organizational Eligibility 

Clinic by the Bay is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from 
tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to understand and serve, with dignity and 
respect, the health and wellness needs of the medically underserved in the San Francisco Bay 
Area. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having low income 
adults, in the Town and in the surrounding area, served by free primary medical care from 
Clinic by the Bay.  The Town also benefits as Clinic by the Bay provides residents with 

Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 3 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  



meaningful volunteer opportunities to be part of a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  
The grant funds will be used to expand primary care, continue to offer Saturday hours, and 
expand chronic disease management programs.  

Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of Commerce 
(“Chamber”), is registered with the California Attorney General as a mutual benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue 
Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 
501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business development and networking, and to provide 
members with useful information and services. The Chamber serves commercial establishments 
within the Town of Colma and the City of Daly City. The Town of Colma is located within the 
Chamber’s membership area. The Chamber takes an active leadership role in promoting 
economic, professional, commercial and civic vitality for the Town of Colma and surrounding 
communities. The Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its members by providing them 
with business development and networking opportunities as well as educational materials. 
These programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to the public by the 
Chamber’s members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved services and 
increased sales will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the benefit of all 
residents and businesses located in the Town. 

Community Gatepath is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax 
under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide greater independence for persons with 
special needs and disabilities through education and support services that empower them. The 
Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having people with disabilities 
becoming active members of the community, spending money at local businesses, volunteering 
and working in the Town.  

Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to guide collaborative efforts and 
connect the community to services that promote well-being. The Partnership runs two programs 
that would receive funding through the granting process: The Daly City Community Service 
Center and the Partnership’s Family Resource Center. The Community Center serves low income 
individuals and families in danger of becoming homeless and those needing assistance through 
emergency shelter or housing assistance grants. The Family Resource Center works with 
families, early childhood education professionals and caregivers to promote healthy 
development, academic readiness and safety for children.  

Daly City Youth Health Center, as part of the Jefferson Union High School District (JUHSD), is a 
California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s mission statement is to provide 
safe, respectful, comprehensive health services and education to underserved teens and young 
adults, preparing them for a healthy adulthood. The community wellness center’s activities are 
directed by the JUHSD Board of Directors and Advisory Council. The Center served 13 Colma 
youth and their families two or more times during the 2014-15 school year. The Town of Colma 
is within its service area. The Town benefits by the Center providing accessibility and availability 
of integrated wellness services to youth, especially those who belong to the low-income and 
immigrant populations residing in Colma. The Town also benefits by the Center providing 

Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 4 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  



counseling for Colma youth who are suffering from mental health issues, substance use and 
abuse, and suicidal ideation to help youth better cope with their challenges in life.   

HIP Housing Development Corporation is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to improve the housing and lives of 
people in the community. HIP Housing enables people with special needs to live independent, 
self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area.  

LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter Network) is a nonprofit corporation and has provided the 
Town with a copy of a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 
501(c)(3). Its mission is to help homeless families and individuals in the area and assist them in 
returning to permanent housing and self-sufficiency.  The Town of Colma is located within 
LifeMoves’ service area. The Town benefits from LifeMoves’ work as low-income and homeless 
individuals and families in the area are provided support services to reduce the homeless 
population in the area.   

Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School Program) is a California governmental 
entity. The Wilderness School Program - Susan B. Anthony School Project is a joint program 
administered by Jefferson Union High School District. Its mission is to teach high school 
students leadership skills and responsibility and to provide elementary school children with field 
trip chaperones, on-site tutors, and positive role models. The project consists of field trips, 
hiking and camping. Many students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High School or 
Susan B. Anthony Elementary School, and the number varies from year to year.  

North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) registered with the 
California Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town 
with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to provide nutrition and sustenance to anyone in need. The Town Colma is located 
within its service area. Any Colma resident in need may obtain food from the Food Pantry, but 
the Food Pantry does not track the residency locations of its clients.  

Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (“PCRC”) is registered with the California Attorney General 
as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS 
stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote positive 
collaboration and active engagement among people. It facilitates group discussions and trains 
people in conflict resolution. The Town of Colma is located within its service area, which is all of 
San Mateo County. PCRC will provide free or low-cost information and referral services, 
mediation services, and training to all Colma residents. 

Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-based 
substance-abuse counseling and education services. The Town of Colma is located within its 
service area. Sitike has not provided any information about the residency locations of its clients. 

San Mateo Community College Foundation (Skyline College President's Innovation Fund) is 
registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided 

Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 5 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  



the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 
501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote student success and nourish project innovation and 
excellence by providing special financial support for the three community colleges in the 
District. In particular, the Foundation seeks grant funds for the President’s Innovation Fund 
which is to provide start-up funding and financial support to faculty and staff devising 
innovative programs and services.  The Town of Colma is within the geographic area that the 
Foundation serves. The Foundation estimates that 24% of students registered at Skyline 
College live in the Colma/Daly City region.  

San Mateo County (Jobs for Youth Program) is a California governmental entity. Jobs for Youth 
is a program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide all youths with 
employment services that will assist in gaining necessary job skills. The Town of Colma is 
located within its service area. Jobs for Youth has not provided any information about the 
residency locations of its clients. 

Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to stimulate community action 
on economic, environmental and social issues by providing accurate, timely and empowering 
information.  In general, the funds will be used to support the research and production of the 
Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo County Report.  The Indicators Report evaluates the 
health of San Mateo County and its cities in terms of sustainability and provides a mean for city 
officials, non-profits, and business leaders, to make educated decisions when considering 
sustainable policies. The Town of Colma is within the geographic area served by Sustainable 
San Mateo County and the Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is located. 

Each of these organizations has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the 
terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

Peninsula Television did not meet the Town’s legal standards for funding non-profit entities. As 
such, the Town cannot legally consider its application.   

West Bay Alano Club did not meet the Town’s legal standards for funding non-profit entities. As 
such, the Town cannot legally consider its application.   

Findings of Public Purpose 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for healthcare services to low income, working and 
uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
community at large. The Town and the community at large will benefit from increased 
healthcare services in the form of expanded primary care, Saturday hours for services, and an 
expansion of the chronic disease management program.  Low income, working and uninsured 
adults will have better access to medical care, ensuring the health and vitality of the community 
and of Town residents. All of these services are readily accessible to Colma residents and the 
public benefit is substantial as the Town and the community all benefit from a healthy populace.   

Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 6 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  



The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, business grand openings, 
business promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, and operational costs, as requested 
by the Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the 
Town could provide these same services as part of its economic development program. In that 
case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental 
materials to provide these services.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for education and support services offered by 
Community Gatepath to persons with special needs will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
Colma community at large. The Town benefits by having people with disabilities become active 
members of the community through recreational, educational and volunteer opportunities with 
businesses in the Town. The services offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to 
Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the 
opportunity to learn and thrive. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, as requested by Daly 
City Peninusla Partnership Collaborative, could be provided by the Town but the Town has 
chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely exceed the amount of the grant in staff 
time and incidental materials to provide these services. The services offered by Daly City 
Partnership are readily accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located within the 
Partnership’s service area. Further, the public benefit is substantial as Partnership services 
ensure Colma residents have family support services that are not readily accessible elsewhere.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for comprehensive health services and education to 
underserved teens and young adults from Colma, as requested by the Daly City Youth Health 
Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. Specifically, this program 
will help youths by providing accessibility and availability of integrated wellness services, which 
will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. These services are readily 
accessible to Colma youth, and provide a substantial public benefit by ensuring the health and 
vitality of Colma’s youth. 

The expenditure of public funds to support its Home Sharing program, as requested by HIP 
Housing Development Corporation, could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen 
otherwise. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily accessible to Colma residents, with 
HIP Housing providing direct assistance and resources to nine clients in Colma in 2015. Finally, 
the public benefit is substantial as providing housing to help people live independent lives is 
important for a well-functioning society.   

The expenditure of public funds to pay for walking field trips, Bay Area field trips, nature 
lessons, and an overnight camping trip on the mountain, as requested by Jefferson Union High 
School District for the Wilderness School Program/Susan B. Anthony School Project, will provide 
an identifiable benefit to the community at large. The public benefit provided by these services 
is substantial as the services provide education to the Town’s youth, which will make them 
better, more informed, and more productive citizens.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, as requested by 
LifeMoves (formerly the InnVision Shelter Network) could be provided by the Town but the 
Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the 

Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 7 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  



grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services. The services offered by 
LifeMoves are readily accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located within LifeMoves’ 
service area. Further, the public benefit is substantial as LifeMoves’ services ensure Colma 
residents, or anyone traveling through LifeMoves’ network, have shelter and other support 
services. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for nutrition and sustenance (e.g., three days of staple 
groceries and a hot meal three nights each week) to needy persons as requested, as requested 
by North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City will provide an identifiable 
benefit to the community at large. The Food Pantry provides services that are readily accessible 
to Colma residents as groceries and hot meals would be available to anyone living or traveling 
through Colma. Overall, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services offered by the 
Food Pantry prevent the public from going hungry. 

The expenditure of public funds to support a staff position to work with its trained volunteers, 
as requested by Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
community at large. The services offered by PCRC are readily accessible to Colma residents and 
business owners. Further, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services offered by 
PCRC help avoid conflict issues that may exist between members of the Colma community. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for counselling persons with substance abuse and 
mental health disorders, as requested by Sitike will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma 
community at large. Sitike offers a First Offender Drinking Driver program, an outpatient 
treatment program, a Women’s Intensive Day treatment program, and an Anger Management 
program. Sitike does not track the residency locations of its clients. Specifically these programs 
will help stop the spiral of dependency, which will make the clients better, more informed, and 
more productive citizens. The services offered by Sitike are readily available to Colma residents 
and the public benefit is substantial as Sitike helps stop the cycle of dependency and mental 
health issues. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for innovative programs and services for the College 
District’s Foundation, as requested by the San Mateo Community College Foundation, will 
provide educational opportunities to engage citizens that are students at Skyline College.  The 
Town and the community at large will benefit from increased educational opportunities by 
ensuring a well-educated public and citizen base.  A better educated community will advance 
the Town economically, politically, and socially. The services offered by the San Mateo 
Community College Foundation are readily accessible to any Colma residents attending Skyline 
College. Further, the public benefit is substantial as college students are able to experience new 
and unique educational opportunities. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for job preparation workshops, counseling, job 
placement and internships, as requested by the San Mateo County Jobs for Youth Program, will 
provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Specifically, this program will 
help youths transition into adulthood and gain work experience, which will make them better, 
more informed, and more productive citizens. The services offered by San Mateo County Jobs 
for Youth are readily accessible to Colma youth as last year, two Colma residents participated in 
this program. 

Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 8 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  



The expenditure of public funds to pay for the research and production of the Indicators for a 
Sustainable San Mateo County Report, as requested by Sustainable San Mateo County, will 
provide a much needed resource and educational tool regarding the economy, environment, 
and social issues facing the County.  This report will support the Town’s Sustainable Community 
Strategies and educate and engage citizens, the City Council, and the business community in 
the Town in implementing sustainability policies and objectives. The Sustainable San Mateo 
County Report provides a substantial public benefit by providing the public, private sector, and 
Colma elected officials, with pertinent information regarding sustainability and how it can be 
better met in the County. 

None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, national and 
regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or lobbying 
activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no obligation or 
commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee will not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

Values 
By providing public funds for charitable purposes, the Council is being compassionate to the 
needs of others. At the same time, by adhering to the Council’s policies and procedures, the 
Council is acting with responsibility. 

Alternatives 
The Council could fund some entities at a different level than staff’s proposed amount. Doing 
so, however, could result in the need to identify additional funding sources as the Adopted 
2016-17 Budget includes only $103,000 in available grant funding. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council approve the attached resolution which sets grant funding levels 
as proposed by staff. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution 
B. Funding request summary 
C. Historical funding levels 
D. Funding requests 

 

Staff Report re: FY 2016-17 Non-profit Funding   Page 9 of 9 
25977.00100\29209347.1  
9/6/16  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, 
APPROVING GRANTS TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT EACH 

APPROVED GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING 
CONTRACTS WITH EACH ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATION FOR THE USE OF TOWN 

FUNDS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Pursuant to subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code and the police power
granted to cities by the California Constitution, the Town of Colma may expend public money by 
making grants upon finding that the organization is eligible for grant funding, the expenditure 
will serve a public purpose, and for an expenditure that provides benefits to the public and 
private persons at the same time, there is a direct and substantial benefit to the public with 
only an incidental benefit to private persons.  

(b) To be eligible, an organization must be an IRC 501(c)(3) charity, a governmental entity, 
or a chamber of commerce. In addition, the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma, the organization’s 
governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community, and the organization must 
have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

(c) Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for 
a general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

(d) An organization may submit a request for determination of eligibility for grant funding, 
which shall include documents and information described in section 4.03.050 of the Colma 
Administrative Code.  Each year after a determination of eligibility has been made, an 
organization need only update each item of new or changed information. 

(e) An organization may submit an application for a charitable donation for each program or 
project to be funded. 

2. Findings of Eligibility for Grant Funding

The City Council has reviewed the funding requests from each of the following organization and 
finds as follows: 

(a) Clinic by the Bay is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Clinic by the Bay is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to understand and 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 1 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1
9/6/16  

Attachment A



serve, with dignity and respect, the health and wellness needs of the medically 
underserved in the San Francisco Bay Area. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area. The Town benefits by having low income adults, in the Town and in the 
surrounding area, served by free primary medical care from Clinic by the Bay.  The 
Town also benefits as Clinic by the Bay provides residents with meaningful volunteer 
opportunities to be part of a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  The grant 
funds will be used to expand primary care, continue to offer Saturday hours, and expand 
chronic disease management programs.  

(b) Greater Daly City - Colma Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce (“Chamber”), is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: The Chamber is registered with the California Attorney General  as a mutual 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the 
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under Internal 
Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business 
development and networking, and to provide members with useful information and 
services. The Chamber serves commercial establishments within the Town of Colma and 
the City of Daly City. The Town of Colma is located within the Chamber’s membership 
area. The Chamber takes an active leadership role in promoting economic, professional, 
commercial and civic vitality for the Town of Colma and surrounding communities. The 
Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its members by providing them with business 
development and networking opportunities as well as educational materials. These 
programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to the public by the 
Chamber’s members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved service and 
increased sales will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the 
benefit of all residents and businesses located in the Town. 

(c) Community Gatepath is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Community Gatepath is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide greater 
independence for persons with special needs and disabilities through education and 
support services that empower them. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The 
Town benefits by having people with disabilities becoming active members of the 
community, spending money at local businesses, volunteering and working in the Town.  

(d) Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma.  

Discussion: The Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative’s mission is to guide 
collaborative efforts and connect the community to services that promote well-being. 
The Town of Colma is within its service area. Providing funding to the Partnership 
benefits the Town by providing financial resource to continue operation of the Daly City 
Community Service Center and the Partnership’s Family Resource Center. The 
Community Center serves low income individuals and families in danger of becoming 
homeless and those needing assistance through emergency shelter or housing 
assistance grants. The Family Resource Center works with families, early childhood 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 2 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



education professionals and caregivers to promote healthy development, academic 
readiness and safety for children. 

(e) Daly City Youth Health Center is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: As part of the Jefferson Union High School District (JUHSD), the Daly City 
Youth Health Center is a California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s 
mission statement is to provide safe, respectful, comprehensive health services and 
education to underserved teens and young adults, preparing them for a healthy 
adulthood. The community wellness center’s activities are directed by the JUHSD Board 
of Directors and Advisory Council. The Center served 13 Colma youth and their families 
two or more times during the 2014-15 school year. The Town of Colma is within its 
service area. The Town benefits by the Center providing accessibility and availability of 
integrated wellness services to youth, especially those who belong to the low-income 
and immigrant populations residing in Colma. The Town also benefits by the Center 
providing counseling for Colma youth who are suffering from mental health issues, 
substance use and abuse, and suicidal ideation to help youth better cope with their 
challenges in life. 

(f) HIP Housing Development Corporation (“HIP Housing) is eligible for grant funding from 
the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. HIP Housing is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to improve the housing and 
lives of people in the community. HIP Housing enables people with special needs to live 
independent, self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. The Town of Colma is 
within its service area.  

(g) LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter Network) is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma. 

Discussion: LifeMoves is a nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy 
of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax 
under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to help homeless families and individuals in 
the area and assist them in returning to permanent housing and self-sufficiency.  The 
Town of Colma is located within LifeMoves’ service area. The Town benefits from 
LifeMoves’ work as low-income and homeless individuals and families in the area are 
provided support services to reduce the homeless population in the area.   

(h) Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School Program) is eligible for grant 
funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Jefferson is a California governmental entity. Wilderness School Program -
Susan B. Anthony School Project) is a joint program administered by Jefferson Union 
High School District. Its mission is to teach high school students leadership skills and 
responsibility and to provide field trip chaperones, on-site tutors, and positive role 
models for the elementary school children. The project consists of field trips, hiking and 
camping. Many students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High School or Susan 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 3 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



B. Anthony Elementary School, and the number varies from year to year. 

(i) North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) is eligible 
for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. The Food Pantry is registered with the California Attorney General  as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
provide nutrition and sustenance to anyone in need. The Town Colma is located within 
its service area. Any Colma resident in need may obtain food from the Food Pantry, but 
the Food Pantry does not track the residency locations of its clients.  

(j) Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (“PCRC”) is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma. 

Discussion. PCRC is registered with the California Attorney General  as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote positive 
collaboration and active engagement among people. It facilitates group discussions and 
trains people in conflict resolution. The Town of Colma is located within its service area, 
which is all of San Mateo County. PCRC will provide free or low-cost information and 
referral services, mediation services, and training to all Colma residents. 

(k) Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion. Sitike is registered with the California Attorney General  as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-based 
substance-abuse counseling and education services. The Town of Colma is located 
within its service area. Sitike has not provided any information about the residency 
locations of its clients. 

(l) San Mateo Community College District Foundation is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma. 

Discussion. San Mateo Community College District Foundation is registered with the 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town 
with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). 
Its mission is to promote student success and nourish project innovation and excellence 
by providing special financial support for the three community colleges in the District. In 
particular, the Foundation seeks grant funds for the President’s Innovation Fund which is 
to provide start-up funding and financial support to faculty and staff devising innovative 
programs and services.  The Town of Colma is within the geographic area that the 
Foundation serves. The Foundation estimates that 24% of students registered at Skyline 
College live in the Colma/Daly City region. 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 4 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



(m) San Mateo County (Jobs for Youth Program) is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma.  

Discussion. San Mateo County is a California governmental entity. Jobs for Youth is a 
program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide all youths with 
employment services that will assist in gaining necessary job skills. The Town of Colma 
is located within its service area. Jobs for Youth has not provided any information about 
the residency locations of its clients. 

(n) Sustainable San Mateo County is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to stimulate community action on economic, environmental and social issues 
by providing accurate, timely and empowering information.  In general, the funds will be 
used to support the research and production of the Indicators for a Sustainable San 
Mateo County Report.  The Indicators Report evaluates the health of San Mateo County 
and its cities in terms of sustainability and provides a mean for city officials, non-profits, 
and business leaders, to make educated decisions when considering sustainable policies. 
The Town of Colma is within the geographic area served by Sustainable San Mateo 
County and the Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is located.  

(o) Each of these organizations has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure 
that the terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened 
in any political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of 
or in opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

3. Findings of Public Purpose 

The City Council has reviewed the applications for grant funds from each of the following 
organization and finds as follows:  

(a) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Clinic by the Bay will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for healthcare services to low 
income, working and uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the community at large. The Town and the community at large will 
benefit from increased healthcare services in the form of expanded primary care, 
Saturday hours for services, and an expansion of the chronic disease management 
program.  Low income, working and uninsured adults will have better access to medical 
care, ensuring the health and vitality of the community and of Town residents. All of 
these services are readily accessible to Colma residents and the public benefit is 
substantial as the Town and the community all benefit from a healthy populace. 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 5 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



(b) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Greater Daly City - Colma Chamber 
of Commerce will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, 
business grand openings, business promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, 
and operational costs, as requested by the Greater Daly City - Colma Chamber of 
Commerce could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. 
Specifically, the Town could provide these same services as part of its economic 
development program. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the 
grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services. 

(c) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Community Gatepath will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for education and support services 
offered by Community Gatepath to persons with special needs will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. The Town benefits by having 
people with disabilities become active members of the community through recreational, 
educational and volunteer opportunities with businesses in the Town. The services 
offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to Colma residents and the public 
benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the opportunity to learn and thrive. 

(d) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City Peninsula Partnership 
Collaborative will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, 
as requested by Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative, will provide an identifiable 
benefit to the Town of Colma. The services offered by Daly City Partnership are readily 
accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located within the Partnership’s service 
area. Further, the public benefit is substantial as Partnership services ensure Colma 
residents have family support services that are not readily accessible elsewhere.  

(e) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City Youth Health Center will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for comprehensive health services 
and education to underserved teens and young adults from Colma, as requested by the 
Daly City Youth Health Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at 
large. Specifically, this program will help youths by providing accessibility and availability 
of integrated wellness services, which will make them better, more informed, and more 
productive citizens. These services are readily accessible to Colma youth, and provide a 
substantial public benefit by ensuring the health and vitality of Colma’s youth.  

(f) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to HIP Housing Development Corporation 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for housing for persons with special 
needs, as requested by HIP Housing could be provided by the Town except that the 
Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 6 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



the grant to provide these services. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily 
accessible to Colma residents, with HIP Housing providing direct assistance and 
resources to nine clients in Colma in 2015. Finally, the public benefit is substantial as 
providing housing to help people live independent lives is important for a well-
functioning society.  

(g) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Jefferson Union High School District 
(Wilderness School Program)  will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for walking field trips, Bay Area field 
trips, nature lessons, and an overnight camping trip on the mountain, as requested by 
the applicant, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. The public 
benefit provided by these services is substantial as the services provide education to the 
Town’s youth, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive 
citizens. 

(h) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter 
Network) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, 
as requested by LifeMoves could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen 
otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff 
time and incidental materials to provide these services. The services offered by 
LifeMoves are readily accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located within 
LifeMoves’ service area. Further, the public benefit is substantial as LifeMoves’ services 
ensure Colma residents, or anyone traveling through LifeMoves’ network, have shelter 
and other support services. 

(i) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining 
Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for nutrition and sustenance (e.g., 
three days of staple groceries and a hot meal three nights each week) to needy persons 
as requested by the Food Pantry will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at 
large. The Food Pantry provides services that are readily accessible to Colma residents 
as groceries and hot meals would be available to anyone living or traveling through 
Colma. Overall, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services offered by the 
Food Pantry prevent the public from going hungry. 

(j) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center 
(“PCRC”) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to support a staff position to work with 
PCRC’s trained volunteers, as requested by PCRC, will provide an identifiable benefit to 
the community at large. The services offered by PCRC are readily accessible to Colma 
residents and business owners. Further, the benefit to the public is substantial as the 
services offered by PCRC help avoid conflict issues that may exist between members of 
the Colma community. 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 7 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



(k) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for counseling persons with 
substance abuse and mental health disorders, as requested by Sitike will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Sitike offers a First Offender 
Drinking Driver program, an outpatient treatment program, a Women’s Intensive Day 
treatment program, and an Anger Management program. Sitike does not track the 
residency locations of its clients. Specifically these programs will help stop the spiral of 
dependency, which will make the clients better, more informed, and more productive 
citizens. The services offered by Sitike are readily available to Colma residents and the 
public benefit is substantial as Sitike helps stop the cycle of dependency and mental 
health issues. 

(l) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the San Mateo Community College 
Foundation will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for innovative programs and services 
for the College District’s Foundation, as requested by the San Mateo Community College 
Foundation, will provide educational opportunities to engage citizens that are students 
at Skyline College.  The Town and the community at large will benefit from increased 
educational opportunities by ensuring a well-educated public and citizen base.  A better 
educated community will advance the Town economically, politically, and socially. The 
services offered by the San Mateo Community College Foundation are readily accessible 
to any Colma residents attending Skyline College. Further, the public benefit is 
substantial as college students are able to experience new and unique educational 
opportunities. 

(m) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the San Mateo County Jobs for Youth 
Program will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for job preparation workshops, 
counseling, job placement and internships, as requested by the San Mateo County Jobs 
for Youth Program, will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. 
Specifically, this program will help youths transition into adulthood and gain work 
experience, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. 
The services offered by San Mateo County Jobs for Youth are readily accessible to Colma 
youth as last year, two Colma residents participated in this program. 

(n) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sustainable San Mateo County will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for the research and production of 
the Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo County Report, as requested by Sustainable 
San Mateo County, will provide a much needed resource and educational tool regarding 
the economy, environment, and social issues facing the County.  This report will support 
the Town’s Sustainable Community Strategies and educate and engage citizens, the City 
Council, and the business community in implementing sustainability policies and 
objectives. The Sustainable San Mateo County Report provides a substantial public 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 8 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



benefit by providing the public, private sector, and Colma elected officials, with pertinent 
information regarding sustainability and how it can be better met in the County.  

(o) None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, 
national and regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee 
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

4. Order 

(a) The City Council approves grant funding to each of the following organizations in the 
amounts shown: 

Grantee Amount 
Clinic by the Bay $2,000  
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce $45,000  
Community Gatepath $5,000  
Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative $10,000  
Daly City Youth Health Center $5,000 
Human Investment Project (HIP Housing)  $5,000  
LifeMoves (formerly InnVision Shelter Network) $3,000  
Jefferson Union School District (Wilderness School) $3,000  
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC $12,500  
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center $1,313  
Sitike Counseling Center $6,000  
San Mateo Community College Foundation (Skyline 
College President's Innovation Fund) $600  
SMC Jobs for Youth $500  
Sustainable San Mateo County $3,000  

TOTAL $101,913 
 

(b) Each Grantee must execute a Grant Agreement with the Town before any funds may be 
paid. The Grant Agreement shall include a statement of the goal or purpose of the Grant, a time 
within which the goal is expected to be achieved, and reporting requirements. 

 

 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 9 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



 
 
 
 

Certification of Adoption 
 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2016-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 28, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro       
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 

Res. 2016-##, Grant Funding 2016 Page 10 of 10 
25977.00100\29209349.1  
9/6/16  



Requesting Party Organization's Purpose Town's Money Will be Spent On
Number of Colma Residents or 

Businesses Served Public Benefit
Amount 

Requested
Annual Report 

Submitted
Verified Non-

Profit

Application 
submitted 

timely
Clinic by the Bay Provide healthcare to low-

income, working, uninsured 
adults

Expanding primary care, continuing to 
offer Saturday hours, expanding 
chronic disease management 
program.

21 residents Healthcare  $ 2,000 Yes Yes Yes

Colma - DC Chamber of Commerce Provide members with 
business development, 
networking & resources

Networking events, directory & 
newsletter

Available for all businesses -    
Unclear how many Colma 
businesses are members

Chamber of Commerce  $ 45,000 Yes Yes Yes

Community Gatepath Help people with special needs 
& disabilities gain 
independence.

Nutrition education program 68 residents Life & Vocational skills  $ 5,000 Yes Yes Yes

Daly City Peninsula Partnership CollaborativProvide emergency safety net 
services, education, meantal 
health programs, and social 
services.

Provide support to the Daly City 
Community Service Center and 
Partnership's Family Resource (Our 
Second Home)

45 residents Education, affordable 
housing, and shleter

 $ 25,000 N/A Yes Yes

Daly City Public Library Associates Supplement public funding of 
the 4 branch libraries in Daly 
City.

Digital media lab for the library 
system

All residents Access to programs & 
books at the library

 $ 2,000 Yes Yes
**

Yes

Daly City Youth Health Center To provide safe, respectful, 
comprehensive health services 
to unserved youth, preparing 
them for a healthy adulthood

Increase screening for mental health 
and substance abuse in youth and 
provide counseling services.

102 youth residents/13 families Healthcare  $ 5,000 Yes Yes Yes

Human Investment Project (HIP) Improving the housing & lives 
of people in our community

The Home Sharing Program 
interviews & provides direct assistance 
& 

9 residents Safe, affordable housing  $ 5,000 Yes Yes Yes

Jefferson Union High School District - 
Wilderness School

To provide field trip 
chaperones & tutors for 
elementary school students. 
To teach leadership skills to 
Wilderness students. Develop 
community awareness.

Bus Transportation $3,500       
Entrance Fees $2,000
Chicken & Garden Supplies $300  
Miscellaneous $1,200

Teens from the Wilderness School 
and all 3rd Grade Students at Susan 
B. Anthony School

Education, community & 
environmental awareness

 $ 3,000 Yes Yes No

LifeMoves Shelter & supportive services 
for homeless families & single 
adults.

ISVN programs and services, bringing 
critical assistance to vulnerable 
members of San Mateo County

5 residents Housing  $ 5,000 Yes Yes
**

Yes

North Peninsula Food Pantry &
Dining Center of Daly City

Provide nutrition & sustenance 
to anyone in need

Providing groceries & hot meals Information not tracked - Serve 
North County

Feeding the hungry  $ 12,500 Yes Yes Yes

Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center Facilitates groups & trains 
people in conflict resolution.

Information, Mediation, Conflict 
Resolution, Administration, 
Recruitment & Training Services.

2 residents Mediation  $ 1,313 Yes Yes Yes

Peninsula Television Supports independent 
programming in a variety of 
ways

Keep public informed and educated 
about local issues

All residents Television programming  $ 3,000 N/A No Yes

Sitike Counseling Center Outpatient substance abuse 
services.

Grant used to offset operating costs, 
reducing the amount charged to 
clients. 

8 residents Community counseling & 
education

 $ 8,000 Yes Yes Yes

San Mateo County Community College 
Foundation

Financial support to 
faculty/staff devising 
innovative programs & 

Resources, Conferences, Speaker 
Series, Outreach

Over 2,500 from Colma/Daly City Education  $ 600 Yes Yes Yes

SMC Jobs for Youth Provide youth with services in 
gaining job skills & 
employment.

Workshops, interviews with youth 
counselors, job placement, internships

6 Residents - 1 Business Employment services  $ 500 Yes Yes

Sustainable San Mateo County Report on the economy, 
environment & social issues of 
our county.

Indicators Report All residents & businesses Provides information to city 
officials, residents & 
businesses

 $ 4,000 Yes Yes

West Bay Alano Club Safe and sober environment 
for people in recovery from 
addictions.

Grant used for increase of cost of 
moving out of old facilty and keep a 
place for meetings

All residents Anonymous meetings for 
people in recovery from 
addictions

5,000$  Yes

**

Yes

Total Requests 131,913$   

** amount requested increased or decresed

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Summary of Non-Profit Requests

Name of Organization

FY 2011-12 
Actual

FY 2012-13 
Actual

FY 2013-14 
Actual

FY 2014-15 
Actual

FY 2015-16 
Actual

FY 2016-17 
Requested

Change from 
previous FY

Alisa Ann Ruch Burn Foundation $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
Clinic by the Bay $1,000 $2,050 $2,000 $2,000 $0
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $0
Community Gatepath $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Daly City / Colma 4H Club $0 $0
Daly City Partnership $25,000 $25,000
Daly City Public Library Associates $500 $1,000 $1,000 $2,000 $1,000
Daly City Youth Health Center $5,000 $5,000 $0
Human Investment Project (HIP Housing) * $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $3,000 ($4,000)
LifeMoves * $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $5,000 $2,000
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $0
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,312 $1,313 $1
Peninsula Television $3,000
Rebuilding Together Peninsula $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000
Second Harvest Food Bank $0 $0 $0
Sitike Counseling Center $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $8,000 $2,000
Skyline College President's Innovation Fund $500 $500 $500 $500 $600 $600 $0
SMC Jobs for Youth $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 $0
Sustainable San Mateo County $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $4,000 $1,000
West Alano Bay Club $3,000 $5,000 $2,000
otal (including Housing Element required grantees) $90,250 $90,250 $96,750 $96,800 $99,912 $131,913 $29,001

Footnotes: 

* Indicates a Housing Element required grantee ;
funding will come from Planning Department budget

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment D











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  





























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  











6/24/2016  Page 1 of 4 
 

Non-Profit Funding Request Form  
FY 2016-17 

(Please attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.) 
 
 
Name of Organization:           
 
Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number:     Email Address: __________________ 
 
1. Mission Statement:           
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
2. Amount of Request: $________________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_______________ 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: _______________ 
 
c. Payroll is ________% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the following 

categories and describing how the funding will support the selected category:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;   
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or Integrated 

Care Services;   
C. Educate and engage residents;   
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business in the 

Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 

Edward Lopez


Edward Lopez


Edward Lopez


Edward Lopez


Community Environmental Education Program

Edward Lopez

115 First Ave 			Daly City			CA			94014

650-550-7847/4158061818

elopez@juhsd.net

Our elementary school students gain field trip chaperones, on-site tutors and positive role models.  Our Wilderness students learn and practice leadership skills and responsibility to younger children.  Both groups together develop greater community awareness

3000.00

Our projects will educate and engage residents children through activities they 

would otherwise not have the opportunity to engage.  Through our activities we

expose students to experiences that the Bay Area has to offer.  



6/24/2016  Page 2 of 4 
 

4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
 
5 If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 

explanation of the need for the increase: 
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
 
7. Describe the following: 

A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization in the 
years prior to the grant application;   
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and   
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out to 
Colma residents and businesses. 

 
             
 
             
 

1. Continue our field trips
2. Buy chicken and garden supplies
3. Support shared meals and camping trip supplies
 4. Audio-visual supplies 

N/A

All of our activities contribute to better community awareness and responsibility for all students involved.  Youth of our community are learning to trust and take care of each other and together they are also taking care of their community.  San Bruno Mountain is a community resource right in our backyard; our students will understand how to access and protect this neighborhood resource.  Over the years several high school students have used the skills they develop in the program to be hired by the Colma Park and Recreation Department as well as other jobs connecting with youth.  In 2012 our efforts with our San Bruno Mountain Overnight program was awarded the J. Russell Kent Award.

The number of Colma residents is 50 students.  They will receive services through their

enrollment at Susan B. Anthony School.  We make concerted effort to purchase and 



6/24/2016  Page 3 of 4 
 

             
 
             
 
             
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2015-16 contribution was used: 
 
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 

9. List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2015-16 and requested 
or expected in FY 2016-17: 

 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No ______________ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
             
 
             
 
             
 
             

N/A

X

conduct business in Colma

Contracted transportation & Public transportation: $2942.05

Entrance Fees			                                    $1230.00

Chicken & Garden supplies                                     $169.68

Miscellaneous (picnic & food supplies)                    $1766.23

Total =                                                                      $6102.96



6/24/2016  Page 4 of 4 
 

11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #          
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

� Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
� Roster of current governing board 
� Completed IRS 990 form for the last fiscal year 
� Current Year Annual Operating Budget 

 
 

Edward Lopez


94-3083772













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  











9/7/2016  Page 1 of 4 
 

Non-Profit Funding Request Form  
FY 2016-17 

(Please attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.) 
 
 
Name of Organization: Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (PCRC) 
 
Contact Person: Michelle Vilchez 
 
Address: 1660 So. Amphlett Blvd., Ste. 219, San Mateo, CA  94402 
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number: 650 513 0330 Email Address: mvilchez@pcrcweb.org 
 
1. Mission Statement: The mission of the Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (PCRC) is to 
partner with individuals, groups and institutions to empower people, build relationships, and 
reduce violence through collaborative and innovative processes. To accomplish this mission, 
PCRC trains people to communication and solve problems together, facilitates group meetings, 
builds skills for public participation and, as a neutral third party, assists people in conflict to 
develop mutually acceptable agreements. 
 
2. Amount of Request: $_1,312__________ 
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: Approximately $1.9 million 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: 23 
 
c. Payroll is 70% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 

 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the following 

categories and describing how the funding will support the selected category:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;   
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or Integrated 

Care Services;   
C. Educate and engage residents;   
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business in the 

Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
Categories C and D. (Please see responses below for details of how the funding will support the 
selected categories.) 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
Funding is used to support a staff position to work with PCRC’s trained volunteers to provide 
mediation and related services requested by residents and people who work in Colma and 
throughout San Mateo County.  The contribution from Colma enables PCRC to provide this 
service to enhance the community of the Town of Colma and throughout San Mateo County. 
 
(See attached description of services for more information.) 



9/7/2016  Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
5 If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 

explanation of the need for the increase: 
 
The amount of request is the same as the 15-16 year. 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
As is outlined in the attached description, PCRC provides a wide range of services to residents 
and businesses in Colma. A summary of those services follows 
• Personal response and info & referral services to callers with questions regarding a conflict 

situation,  
• A complete, and accessible orientation to PCRC’s mediation services 
• Access to a mediator with whom to discuss concerns and ask question  
• A person contacted by PCRC to another party or parties to invite them to participate in 

mediation 
• Mediation services when all parties are willing. Typically this is a 2-3 hour session, held in a 

neutral location at a convenient time. This includes the time of a panel of trained, 
experienced mediator. 

• If no mediation is held, PCRC also offers referrals or consultation for other assistance. 
• PCRC supports a pool of over 100 volunteers who provide these and other services 
• The Town of Colma also benefits from PCRC outreach and marketing to inform the residents 

of Colma that the Town supports this service. 
• The Town also receives a discount on other services such as training and facilitation. 
 
By funding these services, Colma is making them available at a reduced rate to the user. In 
addition, Colma demonstrates to its constituents support for the use of conflict resolution 
processes. We find that having PCRC’s services available is a valuable resource to city staff 
members who are asked to manage conflicts among neighbors, landlords and tenants, families, 
consumers and businesses, work associates and others in the community. With PCRC to refer 
situations to, city staff members have an alternative to spending their own time on issues that 
are not truly city issues to solve. 
 
7. Describe the following: 

A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization in the 
years prior to the grant application;   
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and   
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out to 
Colma residents and businesses. 

 
(Please see answers above and below including attached description of services for more 
information.) 
 
 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2015-16 contribution was used: 
 
The funding provided in 2015-2016 was used to ensure that PCRC doors are open when Colma 
residents need to utilize our services as outlined above.  



9/7/2016  Page 3 of 4 
 

Number of Colma residents & businesses served: Of 285 countywide conflict cases that 
PCRC addressed, two cases included Colma residents and businesses. In the past we have 
served dozens of Colma residents with mediation services and information and referral 
assistance.  We are happy to work with the city to determine how to make sure that referrals 
are being made and the city is getting full benefit of the service.  

9. List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2015-16 and requested 
or expected in FY 2016-17: 

 
The following data presents city payments for community mediation services in the current 
fiscal year. Requests to all cities for the new fiscal year are currently in process.  Please note 
that cities contract for a variety of services from PCRC, selecting from a menu of possibilities. 
The date of contract initiation, tailoring of services and the city’s population size account for the 
great variation in contract amounts. 
 
Name of City   2015-16_(received)__        2016-2017 (anticipated 
request) 
Belmont   $3,000    $3,150 
Brisbane   $2,150    $2,258 
Burlingame   $18,554   $19,482 
Daly City   $6,615    $6,946 
Foster City   $1,000    $1,000 
Half Moon Bay   $3,363    $3,531     
Portola Valley   $500    $525  
Redwood City   $8,000    $8,400 
San Bruno   $9,100    $9,555 
San Mateo   $38,816   $38,657 
S. San Francisco  $19,492   $20,467 
San Mateo County  $8,736    $9,173 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No _X_ 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
             
 
 
 
11. Charitable Trust # or EIN #  77-0144000    
 
 
Please attach a copy of the following: 
 

✸Proof of organization’s tax exempt status 
✸Roster of current governing board 
✸Completed IRS 990 form for the last fiscal year 
✸Current Year Annual Operating Budget 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  















9/8/2016  Page 1 of 4 
 

Non-Profit Funding Request Form  
FY 2016-17 

(Please attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space.) 
 
 
Name of Organization: Sitike Counseling Center       
 
Contact Person: Joe Wagenhofer 
 
Address: 306 Spruce Avenue              South San Francisco  CA                94080 
  Street Address   City  State  Zip Code  
 
Phone Number: 650-589-9305    Email Address:Sitike@sbcglobal.net 
 
1. Mission Statement: Our mission is to provide community based counseling and 
education in a safe and healing environment that embraces the cultural and emotional needs of 
every client and help people find hope, resiliency and life affirming change. 
 
2. Amount of Request: $8,000    
 
 a. Total Agency Annual Budget: $_901,836 
 

b. Number of Agency Employees: 19 
 

c. Payroll is 68% of the Agency’s total Annual Budget. 
 
3.  Please identify a public purpose for the requested funding by identifying one of the following 

categories and describing how the funding will support the selected category:  

A. Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;   
B. Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or Integrated 

Care Services;   
C. Educate and engage residents;   
D. Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business in the 

Town; or Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

 
The public purpose for the requested funding is to provide mental health services to people with 
behavioral health and recovery issues. Funding will allow us to serve those people in need of 
our programs who are either unemployed/underemployed or otherwise unable to afford our 
minimal client fee structure. 
 
4. Describe reason for request and how funds will be used: 
 
Town of Colma funds will be used to supplement the actual cost of providing services to our 
clients.  We receive partial funding through San Mateo County Behavioral Health & Recovery 
Services.   
 
We must charge our clients a fee for the services they receive.  Town of Colma funding will 
allow us to charge lower fees to those clients in need, ensuring that they will meet the 
requirements of completing treatment.  
 



9/8/2016  Page 2 of 4 
 

Without these funds, we will be required to charge higher fees than we know our clients can 
afford, resulting in fewer clients who will be able to complete treatment. 
 
5 If the amount of the request is higher than the previous year, provide a detailed 

explanation of the need for the increase: 
 
Our costs have increased in the past year while the demand for services continues to rise. 
 
6. Describe the benefit to the Town derived from funding your organization: 
 
Substance abusing clients have numerous health, housing, legal and employment challenges. 
The large majority of our clients are mandated into our services through the San Mateo County 
Superior Court or San Mateo County Child Protective Services. Many of our clients have few 
options for low cost services. The actual cost of providing treatment services have increased 
with increasing health insurance, worker's compensation and cost of living for personnel. 
Providing low cost services ensures that clients can afford treatment and therefore eases the 
financial burden placed on the family and allows them to meet their court or job related 
requirements.   
 
Treating substance abuse and mental health disorders has a positive effect on the community 
at large by reducing lost work days, promoting better work performance, reducing drug dealing, 
spousal abuse, emergency room visits and paramedic responses, thus reducing the burden of 
providing City services. 
 
Sitike offers six programs:   

A. Domestic Violence treatment Program: Our Domestic Violence Program 
consists of 52 weeks, (104 hours), of group counseling and is based on the 
philosophies developed and promoted by trauma specialist Lisa Najavitz PHD and by 
cognitive behavioral Practioners and agencies such as Safe Alternatives to Violent 
Environments, (S.A.V.E.), and Community Overcoming Violence,(C.O.R.A.). We are 
an approved provider for the San Mateo County Probation Department. 
 

B. Anger Management treatment Program: Our Anger Management Program 
consists of 32 hours of group and individual counseling and is based on the 
philosophies developed and promoted by trauma specialist Lisa Najavitz, PhD and by 
cognitive-behavioral practitioners and agencies such as the National Curriculum & 
Training Institute.  

 
C. First Offender Drinking Driver Program: For first-time offenders of the Driving 

Under the Influence (DUI) law, a 12, 32, 45, or 60- hour program is available to 
meet the court’s requirement for education. Clients learn about alcohol and other 
drugs, alcoholism and other addiction-related diseases, about laws related to 
drinking and driving, and how to avoid a second offense. English and Spanish-
speaking services are available. Sitike Counseling Centers DUI programs comply with 
local court, state system and DMV mandates. Services include individual and group 
counseling and education and are offered in both day and evening times. 

D. Outpatient treatment program: that provides individualized treatment and group 
counseling for adult men and women; The Outpatient  Program is a three- to twelve-
month program for adult men and women. Clients attend two to four times per week 
based on their individual need.The program utilizes the evidence-based work of Lisa 
M. Najavits, PhD, a Professor of Psychiatry and the author of Seeking Safety. The 



9/8/2016  Page 3 of 4 
 

curriculum links recovery from substance abuse with recovery from mental and 
emotional challenges and provides guidance for both. The program combines 
informational lectures on addiction, mental and physical health- related issues, 
psycho-education group process, workbook exercises and individual counseling for a 
comprehensive treatment experience. Clients are assessed for additional 
occupational, housing, literacy and health care needs and are linked to appropriate 
services. Groups are available late afternoon and early evenings Monday through 
Thursday. English and Spanish-speaking services are available. 
 

E. Women’s Intensive Day treatment program: The Women’s Intensive Day 
Treatment Program is a gender-specific structured, three-phase program with 
individualized, comprehensive, and intensive services. Women attend three to five 
days per week, four hours per day, for a minimum of three months to a maximum of 
one year. Transportation to and from the facility and on-site therapeutic day care for 
the attendees’ children (age five and under) are provided, along with one hot 
nutritionally-balanced meal.The program utilizes the evidence-based work of Dr. 
Stephanie Covington, a clinician, author, organizational consultant, and lecturer who 
is recognized for her pioneering work in the area of women’s trauma and other 
issues. The program includes group and individual counseling; case management; 
12-step meeting attendance monitoring; psychoeducational groups addressing 
women’s health; parenting & child development; relapse prevention; vocational 
rehabilitation; anger management, with reading, writing, and math classes and 
General Education Diploma (GED) preparedness. 

 
F. Teen education program: Our Marriage and Family Therapists and interns, and 

Drug and Alcohol counselors, partner with the community to provide individualized 
drug education for adolescents and their families. We offer a three or four hour 
program to promote an understanding of the continuum of drug and alcohol use, 
impulse management, acquisition of refusal skills and a balanced and informed 
decision making process. 

 
Our objective is to assist people in addressing their substance abuse/mental health and anger 
issues, intervene in their alcohol and/or drug use and provide them with tools to reduce 
relapse, recidivism and the perpetuation of violence. There currently are two other providers in 
the immediate area, Latino Commission and Asian American Recovery Services; however, while 
similar in their focus they serve a specific cultural and ethnic group.  Sitike provides services to 
these and all other populations in both English and Spanish. 
  
Sitike’s services are oriented towards individuals rather than businesses. However we can serve 
any Town of Colma business by either providing education to the employer or providing 
education and treatment to their employees. 
 
7. Describe the following: 

A. Number of Colma residents or businesses (or both) served by the organization in the 
years prior to the grant application;   
B. The location(s) where Colma residents or businesses may receive the recipient 
organization’s services or programs; and   
C. The nature and extent of the efforts of the recipient organization to reach out to 
Colma residents and businesses. 

 
A. Number of Colma residents served: 12 during FY 15-16 
 



9/8/2016  Page 4 of 4 
 

B. All of our services are provided at our South San Francisco location. 
 

C. Our services are provided County-wide and we are listed in all directories and websites 
that promote the servoces we offer. 

 
8. Provide a detailed account of how the FY 2015-16 contribution was used: 
 

1. Results of the Program: 
As a result of the support from the Town of Colma we did not have to raise our client fees to 
support the ever increasing cost of our program, and we were able to provide twelve low-
income clients with grants averaging $500 each enabling them to successfully complete their 
program. 
 

2. Program Evaluation: 
In our follow-up with those clients who completed the program: 
75% of clients completing the program reported no alcohol or drug use in the prior 30 days. 
65% of clients completing reported no new arrests. 
75% of clients completing the program reported an improvement in health 
75% of clients completing reported improved family relationships. 
 

3. Accounting of the use of the Grant Funds: 
The $6,000 grant was used to supplement the actual cost of providing services to our clients. 
We receive partial funding through San Mateo County Behavioral Health & Recovery Services.  
As a result of the Town of Colma Grant we were able to charge lower fees to those clients in 
need, ensuring that they met the requirements of completing treatment.  
 
The grant funds were expended as follows: 
Personnel: 70%, $4,200 
Rent: 8%, $480 
Operating and Program Expenses: 22%, $1,320 

9. List contributions requested and received from other cities in FY 2015-16 and requested 
or expected in FY 2016-17: 

 
FY 2015-16 and 2016-17 City of South San Francisco 
 
10. Did the organization participate in or intervene in any political campaign (including the 

publication or distribution of statements) on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate 
for public office within the past 36 months (please select one)?   

 
Yes __________ No X___________ 
 
 
If yes, please provide details.    
 
             
 
11. Charitable Trust # or EIN # 94-3065810 
 
 






































	09.28.16 Regular Meeting
	1. Minutes - 09.14.16
	2. Second Reading - Housing Impact Fees Ordinance
	3. Appointing City Manager as City Treasurer
	A. Ordinance - City Treasurer Duties
	B. Resolution - Appointing New City Treasurer

	4. Grant Funding Request for DCPLA
	A. Resolution - DCPLA Grant Funding 2016
	B. Funding Request 

	5. FY 2016-17 Non-Profit Funding
	A. Resolution - Grand Funding 2016
	B. Summary of Funding Requests
	C. Historic Funding Levels
	D. Funding Requests
	Clinic by the Bay
	Colma-DC Chamber of Commerce
	Community Gatepath
	Daly City Partnership
	Daly City Youth Center
	HIP Housing
	Jefferson Union High School District-Wilderness School
	LifeMoves
	NPFPDC
	PCRC
	PenTV
	Sitike
	SMC Community College Foundation
	SMC Jobs for Youth
	Sustainable San Mateo County
	West Bay Alano Club





